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f̂euh jRu*
bf.M;u eSfMflUl iQkesZL;wfVdy dkWiksZjs'ku fyfeVsM

(Hkkjr ljdkj dk m|e)
eksgku] ftyk vYeksM+k (ok;k jkeuxj&244715) mRrjk[k.M

‘MINI RATNA’
IndIan medIcInes pharmaceutIcal corporatIon lImIted

(A Government of India Enterprise)
Mohan, Distt. Almora (Via Ramnagar-244715) Uttarakhand

Ref. No. IMPCL/Corp/CS/2022-23/57 date: 17.10.2022

NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the 44th Annual General Meeting of the members of INdIAN MEdICINES 
PHARMACEUTICAL CORPORATION LIMITEd will be held as scheduled below: -

 Date : 21.10.2022

 Day : FRIDAY

 time : 09:30 AM

 Venue : IMPCL, MoHAn, ALMoRA-244715, UttARAKHAnD

to transact the following business:

ORdINARY BUSSINESS:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the audited Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended 31st march, 
2022, the Balance Sheet as at that date and Directors’ report and Auditor’s Report along with other 
related documents and comments of Comptroller & Auditor General of India thereon.

2. To consider the appointment of, fixing of the remuneration of Statutory Auditors of the Company 
appointed by the Comptroller & Auditor General of India i.e. M/s Achal Srivastava & Co., Chartered 
Accountant, for the year 2022-23

3. to approve Final equity Dividend declared for Financial Year 2021-2022.

By order of the Board of Directors

 For INdIAN MEdICINES PHARMACEUTICAL CORPORATION LTd.

 (CS Pankaj Kumar Jha)

Company Secretary

Place: Mohan

Registered office: Mohan (via-Ramnagar), District - Almora, Uttarakhand - 244715
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To,

All Members of the Company, Auditors, All directors

Note:-  A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote 
instead of himself and such proxy need not be a member of the Company. Proxies in order to be effective 
must be received by the Company not less than forty-eight hours before the meeting.

CC to: (1)  the Under Secretary to the Government of India, Ministry of Ayush, Ayush Bhawan,  
B-Block, GPo Complex, InA, new Delhi-110023

 (2) The Registrar of Companies, Uttarakhand, Mezzanine Floor 78, Rajpur road , Office No. 259, 
Shri Radha Palace Dehradun The Mall, PIN-248001 Uttarakhand.

By order of the Board of Directors

  For INdIAN MEdICINES PHARMACEUTICAL CORPORATION LTd.

  (CS Pankaj Kumar Jha)

Company Secretary

NB: Consent of shareholders U/S 136 of the companies Act, 2013 is being obtained/has been obtained.
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PROXY fORM

Shares held _____________________

Regd. Folio no. _____________________

(name in block letters) ___________________________________

“I/We _________________________ Resident of __________________________ 
_____________________ being a member/members of the Indian Medicines Pharmaceutical 
Corporation Limited, hereby appoint _____________ Resident of ___________________ 
as my proxy to vote for me and on my behalf at the Annual General Meeting of the company 
to be held Friday, october 21, 2022, 9:30 am or any adjournment thereof.”

Signature ___________

Signed this ___________ day of ___________

Note:  The Proxy to be effective should be deposited at the Registered office of the Company  
not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the meeting.
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fROM THE dESK Of MANAGING dIRECTOR

At the outset let me wish you all on the ensuing Festival of Lights “DeePAWALI” May this festival bring happiness 
prosperity and Good Health to you and your family.

IMPCL surpasses all records, in-terms of Production, turnover and Profit establishing that capabilities exists in the 
organisation as a team and we are committed to do wonders both by Men and Machine in the years to come. I 
compliment the efforts put in by the employees and officers who toiled hard to achieve this feat.

Financial Year 2021-22, which has been a record year in terms of turnover and profit but a difficult year in terms of 
operations. our dedicated and experienced team of management, employees and casual workers and the commitment 
to their assignment, has been the triumph for our high turnover and profit. I would like to take this opportunity to 
thank our team for their continued hard work and commitment to take this organisation to further heights.

the Profit before tax of IMPCL was ` 42.77 Lakh during the year 2019-2020, which surged to ` 45.41 Crore for the 
year 2021-2022, at a 100 fold increase which itself is commendable and a booster to work harder. All these efforts put 
together has contributed to the highest ever turnover of ` 260.84 for the year 2021-22. Increase of over 59% over the 
previous year’s turnover of ` 164.02 Crore has been recorded. the current profit of ` 45.41 Crore is almost thrice over 
the previous year’s i.e. f.y. 2020-21 profit of ` 15.69 Crore. this achievement has been despite the continued impact 
of CoVID in its operations.

the company has recommended for the first time payment of dividend at 15% of Profit after tax for the year 2020-
21 and paid ` 1.66 Crore to its Share Holders during 2021-22. the dividend has been apportioned to ` 1.63 Crore to 
Government of India (Bharat Kosh) and ` 3 Lakhs to M/s KMVn Ltd (Government of Uttarakhand).

IMPCL has been conferred with WHO-GMP/CoPP certification by DCG(I) for 18 Ayuevedic Products for the First time in 
its operations which has given an opportunity to explore the export Business. IMPCL has Business diversification plans 
in the area of Ayurvedic Veterinary medicines and is likely to record the business shortly. IMPCL is the only CSPe whose 
price/rate has been successfully accepted in the GeM portal for procurement purposes and products are available for 
procurement of medicines. IMPCL contributed to PM-BJP during pandemic and made the Bal Raksha Kit, Ayur Raksha 
Kit, Ayush 64 available to all Jan Ausadhi Kendra across the country. IMPCL ensured availability of Ayur Raksha Kit for 
Polling Parties across all the Polling Booths of Uttar Pradesh against their requirement elections concluded in March 
2022. Ayur Care kit was made available against Ministry of Ayush requirement within the shortest period of time that 
is 10 days during third wave of Pandemic.

With our strong commitment and unmatched product portfolio, we have been effectively managing our business, 
regardless of the operating environment and relentlessly working towards higher Goals set for ourselves. With our 
dedicated team, we intend to achieve even higher targets.

Like previous years, the Company has a strong commitment towards environment sustainability and social development.

the Company also contributed significantly towards R&D activities for the nation Building and developed Proprietary 
Ayurvedic Medicines and started to develop in the years to come more proprietary as well as classical Ayurvedic/ 
Unani Medicines as per essential Drug List (eDL).

I take this opportunity to thank the Board of Directors whose unstinted support and fast decision making process, also 
helped us in achieving our target. I thank all, in the Ministry of Ayush, Government of India, for the timely support, help 
and guidance extended by them. I extend my appreciation and gratitude to our Vendors, and Business Associates for 
their excellent and continued commitment and support towards IMPCL.

Sincerely,

(Dr. Mukesh Kumar)
Managing Director
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dIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Members of

Indian Medicines Pharmaceutical Corporation Limited

the Board of Directors have immense pleasure in presenting the Annual Report of Indian Medicines Pharmaceutical 
Corporation Ltd. (IMPCL), on the business and operations of the company for the year ending 31st March 2022. Your 
Company has tremendously improved in its overall performance with record turnover and Profits which has been 
highlighted below.

1. fINANCIAL PERfORMANCE SUMMARY

 the Financial highlights of your company are as below:

(` in Crores)

Sr. No. Particulars for the year 2021-22 for the Year 2020-21 

1 Revenue from operations 260.84 164.02

2 other Income 2.70 1.45

3 Profit before tax (PBt) 45.41 15.69

4 Profit after tax (PAt) 33.76 11.05

5 Reserve & Surplus 65.91 33.97

6 Paid up Share Capital 51.98 51.98

7 earnings Per share (Basic & diluted) 6.50 2.13

8 Book Value of the Share 10.00 10.00

2. SHARE CAPITAL

 the Authorised Share Capital of the Company remains at ` 75 Crore and paid up capital continues to remain at 
` 51.98 Crore.

3. GROSS SALES TURNOVER

 the Company has achieved a Gross Sales turnover of ` 260.84 Crore for the current Financial Year as against 
` 164.02 Crore achieved during the year 2020-21. the Gross sales turnover of the company is inclusive of ` 185.00 
Crore of the in-house facility of unit situated at “Mohan” and “Imlikhera” as well as ` 75.84 crore through loan 
license firms, i.e. M/s Shree Dhanwantri Herbals for Ayurvedic Medicines and M/s Multani Pharmaceutical Ltd. for 
Unani Medicines. For the Financial Year 2022-23 the Company has set a target of ` 352 crore.

 the Gross Sales turnover of the Company for the various years has been of the order of as follows.

Year 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22

Crore (`) 95.21 86.83 97.04 164.02 260.84
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4. fINANCIAL RESULTS

 the summarised financial results for the year 2021-22 are furnished below:

(` in Crores)

Particulars for the year 2021-22 for the Year 2020-21 

Profit before interest, depreciation and tax 48.37 18.90

Less: Interest and other financial charges 0.00 0.02

Cash Profit 48.37 18.88

Less: Depreciation 2.96 3.19

Profit before tax (PBt) 45.41 15.69

Less: Provision for taxation 11.65 4.64

Profit after tax and adjustments 33.76 11.05
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5. dIVIdENd

 Your Directors inform that the Company has recorded the highest turnover till date and are pleased that the 
company has for the first time declared and paid dividend at 15% of Profit after tax for the year 2020-21. the 
company recommends dividend at 30% of Profit after tax for the year 2021-22.

6. INVENTORIES ANd dEBTORS

 the value of total inventories consisting interalia of raw materials, Work in Progress and Finished Goods were 
` 46.05 crore which worked out to 17.65% (Previous year 19.78%) of sales turnover. As on 31.03.2022, debtors 
were ` 29.56 (Previous Year ` 23.72 Crore).

7. dEPOSITS

 During the year under review, your company did not accept any deposits within the meaning of the provisions 
of Chapter V – Acceptance of Deposits by Companies of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies 
(Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014.

8. PARTICULARS Of LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS

 During the year under review, your company has not given any loans or Guarantees covered under the provisions 
of Section 186 of the companies Act, 2013.
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9. CONTRIBUTION TO PUBLIC EXCHEQUER

 Your company has contributed a sum of ` 11.61 crore (Previous Year ` 3.44 crore) to the exchequer of Central and 
State Governments by way of Income tax, GSt etc.

10. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS ANd AdEQUACY

 the Company has proper and adequate systems of internal controls, commensurate with the nature of its business, 
size and complexity of operations. This ensures that all transactions are authorised, recorded and reported 
correctly, and assets are safeguarded and protected against loss from unauthorised use or disposition. this system 
are routinely tested and certified by Statutory as well as Internal Auditors. In case of any area of correction is found 
or observed by the Auditors, the same has been reported in their report.

11. RELATEd PARTY TRANSACTIONS

 All the related party transactions that were entered into during the financial year were on arm’s length basis and 
were in ordinary course of business. there were no materially significant transactions with related parties during 
the year which were in conflict with interest of the Company. Suitable disclosures as required under AS–18 have 
been made in note no. 29.18 of the notes to the Financial Statement.

 Since all related party transactions entered into by the Company were in the ordinary course of business and were 
on arm’s length basis, Form AoC – 2 is not applicable to the Company.

12. CAPACITY UTILISATION

 Licensed/Installed capacity and actual production of Mohan Unit:

S. No. ITEM UNIT INSTALLEd CAPACITY ACTUAL PROdUCTION

2021-22 2020-21 2021-22 2020-21

1. tablets/Pills KG. 200000.00 200000.00 189918.08 154129.10

2. Capsules KG. 50000.00 50000.00 8942.80 4201.10

3. Choorna KG. 600000.00 600000.00 384141.38 202337.08

4. Syrups LtRS. 300000.00 300000.00 230130.50 106161.60

5. Arka LtRS. 50000.00 50000.00 37099.00 41273.12

6. Asava LtRS. 500000.00 500000.00 376288.00 358700.00

7. taila LtRS. 300000.00 300000.00 253591.00 92902.25

8. Marham KG. 30000.00 30000.00 3676.55 8103.00

9. Avaleha KG. 250000.00 250000.00 350404.24 261184.75

10. Bhasma KG. 50000.00 50000.00 5950.55 16574.50

TOTAL 2330000.00 2330000.00 1840142.10 1245566.50

 Note: Due to heavy demand of pandemic drugs of Avaleha during the year, actual Avaleha production is 5,97,895.54 
KG. Therefore, under utilization capacity of 147491.30 KG. in Syrups Section and 100000 KG of Taila Section have 
been utilized for producing Avaleha.
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 Licensed/Installed capacity and actual production of Imlikhera (Haridwar) Unit:

S. No. ITEM UNIT INSTALLEd CAPACITY ACTUAL PROdUCTION

2021-22 2020-21 2021-22 2020-21

1. tablets/Pills KG. 22000.00 22000.00 32854.38 28872.30

2. Capsules KG. 14000.00 14000.00 — —

3. Choorna KG. 380000.00 380000.00 134065.50 463499.00

4. Syrups LtRS. 145000.00 145000.00 10905.00 1330.00

5. Arka LtRS. — — — —

6. Asava LtRS. 360000.00 360000.00 207756.00 351771.00

7. taila LtRS. 145000.00 145000.00 13320.50 51831.50

8. Marham KG. 23000.00 23000.00 — 37.80

9. Avaleha KG. 25000.00 25000.00 18121.00 13276.60

10. Bhasma KG. 3000.00 3000.00 167.00 23.03

TOTAL 1117000.00 1117000.00 417189.38 910641.13

13. ENCOURAGEMENT TO MICRO, SMALL ENTERPRISES

 Government of India vide order no. S.o. 581(6) dated 23.03.2012 and S.o. dated 14.11.2018 has notified a 
new Public Procurement Policy for Micro and Small enterprises. As per the order, minimum 25% of total annual 
Purchases have to be procured from MSes including reservation of 25% to units owned by Scheduled Caste/
Scheduled tribe entrepreneurs. Your company has procured goods from Micro Small enterprises during 2021-22 
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to the extent of ` 37.17 crore against a total procurement of ` 100.10 crore which is around 37.13% in compliance 
of the above said guidelines.

14. HUMAN RESOURCES

 the Company is having shortage of qualified and requisite workforce. the total workforce of the company as 
on 31.03.2022 was 88, consisting of 18 officers and 70 non-officers. the number of women employees in the 
Company was 09. the Company has recruited some officers in the year 2021-22 and further recruitment is to be 
done to ensure optimal functioning of the organisation and achievement of its targets and goals.

15. HUMAN RESOURCE dEVELOPMENT

 Your Company’s talent management strategy is focused on building a competent workforce to meet business needs, 
and it is also cantered around workforce planning and talent acquisition, performance management, capacity 
building, career growth, succession planning and leadership development. employees are most valuable tangible 
assets of the company. We have created a favourable work environment. Investing in people’s competencies is the 
existing mantra for growth of the organisation. In order to keep pace with the latest changing scenario, and the 
need to update the knowledge and skills of human, the company has taken various initiatives.

 The company continues to organize requisite training programmes both in house as well as through Institutes/
Consultants enabling the employees to acquire requisite capabilities and skills in furthering the benefit to the 
organisation. the Company has organised nil nos. of training Programmes in-house and nil nos. Programmes 
external.

16. REPRESENTATION Of SC & ST CANdIdATES

 the strength of employees belonging to the SC/St category, as on 31.03.2022 was 22 nos. (SCs-21 & Sts-01) and 
in the Previous year it was 25 nos. (SCs-24 & Sts-01).

17. REPRESENTATION Of MINORITIES ANd PERSONS WITH dISABILITY

 the strength of employees belonging to Minorities category as on 31.03.2022 was 02 nos. (previous year 02 nos.)

 In compliance of Government Guidelines the Company had recruited the requisite number of employees. However, 
presently the strength of employees belonging to persons with Disability category as on 31.03.2022 was 02 nos.

18. HUMAN RELATIONS

 During the year under review, the industrial relation scenario in the Company was peaceful, cordial and healthy.

19. EMPLOYEE WELfARE

 the Company continues to provide bus services facilities to its employees for commute to office and back as well 
as Uniform to its employees. Inter alia the company also provides, interest free medical advance, Festival Advance 
to its desiring employees and medicines to its employees at discounted price. the expenditure on the provision of 
welfare and other amenities during the year amounted to ` 70.28 lakh (` 41.43 lakh during 2020-21).

20. dISCLOSURE UNdER SEXUAL HARASSMENT Of WOMEN AT WORK PLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION ANd 
REdRESSAL) ACT, 2013

 the Company has in place an Anti Sexual Harassment Policy in line with requirements of the Sexual Harassment of 
Women at Work Place (Prevention, Prohibition And Redressal Act, 2013). All employees (permanent, contractual, 
temporary, trainees) are covered under the policy. Internal complaints committee (ICC) has been set up to redress 
any complaint received.

 the following is a summary of sexual harassment complaints received and disposed off during the financial year.

 no. of complaints received: nil

 no. of complaints disposed off: nA
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21. SAfETY

 there have been no fatal accidents during the year. the company continues its focus on high safety standards in its 
operations. employees have been provided with requisite safety gears for its day to day operations.

22. ENVIRONMENT PROTECTION ANd SUSTAINABILITY MEASURES

 Climate change and global warming arising out of human activities is the biggest concern globally. Meeting 
the challenges require proactive innovative solution to sustain economic activities with minimal impact on 
environmental systems. Your Company has taken the following initiatives like Landscaping, Lawn preparation, 
maintenance of Garden at factory, etc.

23. RISK MANAGEMENT

 Your Company has adopted a Risk Management Policy for its Business Processes. It establishes various levels of 
risk, accountability and overview within the Company, while vesting identified managers with responsibility for 
each significant risk. the Company has identified various risks and also has mitigation plans for its risk identified. 
the Risk policy is reviewed every year to identify new risks and its process of mitigation is also established.

24. CONSERVATION Of ENERGY, TECHNICAL ABSORPTION, fOREIGN EXCHANGE/OUTGO

 the particular regarding Conservation of energy, technical Absorption, Foreign exchange/outgo, as prescribed 
under Sub-Section 3 (m) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014, are given as Annexure-2, which forms part of this report.

25. RIGHT TO THE INfORMATION ACT, 2005

 Your Company has implemented Right to Information (RTI) Act, 2005, which enhances the common citizen by 
providing access to information with a view to enlighten them on the accountability and transparency practised 
in the company. the Company has always endeavoured to ensure that various enabling provisions of the RtI Act, 
2005 are implemented in letter and spirit. the number of RtI applications received and disposed off during year 
2021-22 is given below:

 no. of RtI applications pending as on 1st April 2021 -nIL

 no. of RtI applications received during year 2021-22 72

 no. of RtI applications disposed during year 2021-22 72

 no. of RtI applications pending as on 31st March 2022 -nIL

 Apart from RtI applications, the Company has received 7no. of 1st Appeals and 4 no. of 2nd Appeals, which too was 
duly attended to and appropriately disposed by the First Appellate Authority/CIC.

26. PARTICULARS Of EMPLOYEES PURSUANT TO SECTION 134(3) Of THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

 Information regarding particulars of employees drawing remuneration in excess of the limit specified under 
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is not applicable as no 
employee of the Company has drawn remuneration in excess of the stipulated limit during the year under review.

27. RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT Of BOARd Of dIRECTORS

 to the best of their knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations obtained by them 
from respective HoD’s, Statutory Auditors and Internal Auditors , your Directors make the following statement in 
terms of Section 134(3)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013:

a. that in the preparation of Annual Accounts, the Applicable Accounting Standards have been followed along 
with proper explanation relating to Material Departures.

b. that such accounting policies have been applied consistently and judgements made and estimates, that are 
reasonable and prudent, so as to give true and fair view of the states of affairs of the Company at the end of 
the financial year and of the profit of the company for that period.
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c. that proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of the adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of the companies Act, 2013, for safeguarding the assets of the company and 
for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities.

d. that the annual accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2022 have been prepared on a going concern basis.

e. that the company has laid down internal financial controls systems to be followed by the company and that 
such internal financial controls are adequate and are operating effectively.

f. those proper systems are in devised to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and such 
systems are adequate and operating effectively.

g. Further, report of CAG U/S 143 (6)(b) of the Companies Act, 2013 on Financial Statements of IMPCL for the year 
ending 31st March, 2022 has been observed and directed to adhere to the observation of the CAG/Auditor.

28. SECRETARIAL STANdARdS

 the Directors state that applicable Secretarial Standards, i.e. SS-1 and SS-2, relating to ‘Meetings of the Board of 
Directors’ and ‘General Meetings’, respectively, have been duly followed by the Company.

29. dISQUALIfICATION Of dIRECTORS

 In terms of notification no. GSR/e dated 05.06.2013, issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the Government 
Companies are exempted from the provisions of Section 164(2) of the Companies Act, 2013.

30. KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

 Company has appointed Key Managerial Personnel as per the Provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. the Managing 
Director, nominee Directors, Independent Director, Company Secretary and AGM (F&A) are appointed as Key 
Managerial Personnel.

31. BOARd Of dIRECTORS

 Appointment of Director is notified by Government of India as per the provisions of Memorandum and Articles of 
Association of the Company. there is only one Functional Director i.e. Managing Director and all others are non-
executive Directors (nominees of Government). An amount of ` 34.79 lac (P.Y. ` 21.97 lacs) as remuneration has 
been paid to Managing Director during the year 2021-22.

32. TRANSfER TO RESERVES

 For the period ended 31st March 2022, the Company has not transferred any sum to Reserve.

33. TRANSfER Of UNCLAIMEd/UNPAId AMOUNT TO INVESTOR EdUCATION ANd PROTECTION fUNd

 Pursuant to provisions of the Act read with the Investor education and Protection Fund Authority (Accounting, 
Audit, transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016, as amended, (‘Rules’), the dividend which remains unclaimed or unpaid 
for a period of seven years from the date of transfer to the Unpaid Dividend Account of the Company and shares 
on which dividend are unclaimed or unpaid for a consecutive period of seven years or more are liable to be 
transferred to IePF. there is no unclaimed/unpaid amount of dividend lying.

34. dETAILS Of MONEY ACCEPTEd fROM dIRECTOR

 During the period under review the Company has not accepted money in the form of unsecured loan from the 
director or relative of the director of the Company.

35. ISSUE Of EQUITY SHARES WITH dIffERENTIAL RIGHTS, SWEAT EQUITY, ESOS ETC., If ANY

 the Company has not issued shares with differential voting rights nor granted stock options nor sweat equity 
during the period under review.
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36. CHANGES IN THE BOARd

 During the year 2021-22 one Independent Director was appointed on the Board of the Company.

37. WOMEN dIRECTORS

 Presently your Board does not have a Women Director. Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 
3 of Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 provides for appointment of a Women 
Director in the Board of the Company in case of fulfilment of certain conditions. However, your Company does 
not mandatorily require complying for such appointment. Hence, required provisions for composition of Board of 
Directors are being complied with.

38. COMMITTES Of THE BOARd

 As a part of better Corporate Governance practices and in compliance with the requirements of the relevant 
provisions of applicable laws and statutes your Company has constituted a Corporate Social Responsibility 
Committee. the details with respect to the compositions, powers, roles of this Committee are approved by Board 
of Directors in their meeting held in the year 2016-17 dated 25.03.2017.

39. dECLARATION fROM INdEPENdENT dIRECTORS

 Shri. S.K. Srinath has been appointed as independent Director on the Board of Company. w.e.f. 20.03.2022 and has 
submitted declaration under Section 149 regarding his independency. Further, in compliance of relevant laws and 
statutes read with provisions of the guidelines issued by office of Department of Public enterprises the appointment 
of more Independent Directors on the Board of the Company is under process on the date of this report.

40. dISCLOSURE IN TERMS Of VARIOUS PROVISIONS Of THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

 the status of the Company being a Limited Company and not having material profit/turnover/Bank’s borrowings, 
the provision related to:

a. Formation of Audit Committee (Section 177)

b. Formation of nomination and Remuneration Committee (Section 178)

c. Undertaking formal Annual evaluation of Board and that of its committees and the individual Directors

d. Undertaking Secretarial Audit (Section 204) are not applicable to the Company and hence no comment is 
invited in this regard.

41. BOARd MEETINGS HELd dURING THE YEAR

 During the financial year under review, in compliance of the provisions of Section 173 read with Companies 
(Meetings of Board and its powers) Rules, 2014, 07 meetings conducted.

 the maximum interval between any two Board Meetings did not exceed 120 (one hundred and twenty) days. the 
details of attendance of each Director at Board Meeting are as follows: 

director’s Name S/shri No. of Board Meetings Last AGM for the year 2020-2021 
(held on 03.02.2022)Held Attended

Functional Director i.e. Managing Director

Dr. Mukesh Kumar 07 07 Yes

PART-TIME OffICIAL dIRECTORS – GOVT. NOMINEES

Shri Vikram Singh 07 07 Yes

Shri Raj Kumar 07 06 Yes

INdEPENdENT dIRECTOR

Dr S K Srinath 07 nil* no

 *Appointed w.e.f. 20.03.2022 as Independent Director.
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42. ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

 the 43rd Annual General Meeting of the Company was held on 03.02.2022

43. RATING Of THE COMPANY vis – a – vis MOU TARGETS

 Rating of the company for the year 2021-22 has not carried out. . the Management is confident to achieve better 
ratings in the coming years.

44. OffICAL LANGUAGE

 During the year under review, efforts were made for effective and successful implementation of the official 
language policy of the Government. Forms circulars and notice has been made bilingual. Annual report of the 
company for 2021-22 has also been printed in Hindi.

45. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY ANd SUSTAINABLE dEVELOPMENT

 Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) is an integral part of the company’s business strategy. As a responsible 
corporate citizen, we take charge of our social and Environmental Footprint. The Board of Directors has approved 
CSR Policy of the Company. An amount of ` 15.85 lakh has been allocated under CSR Funds during the year 2021-
2022.

46. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

 Your Company is committed to maintain the highest standards of good Corporate Governance and has taken 
adequate steps to adhere to all stipulations laid down in Department of Public enterprises o.M. no.18(8)-2005-
GM dated 14.05.2010. Corporate Governance certificate by the practicing Company Secretary M/s Sudist thakur 
& Associates have been obtained and also Company Secretary confirmed compliance of conditions of Corporate 
Governance.

47. fRAUdS REPORTEd BY AUdITORS UNdER SECTION 143(12), OTHER THAN THOSE WHICH ARE REPORTABLE TO 
THE CENTRAL GOVERNMENT.

 the Statutory Auditors have not reported any incident of fraud to the Board of Directors of the Company.

48. dETAILS Of APPLICATION / ANY PROCEEdING PENdING UNdER THE INSOLVENCY ANd BANKRUPTCY COdE, 2016

 neither any application was made nor any proceeding pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 
(31 of 2016) during the financial year.

49. dETAILS Of dIffERENCE BETWEEN AMOUNT Of THE VALUATION dONE AT THE TIME Of ONE TIME SETTLEMENT 
ANd THE VALUATION dONE WHILE TAKING LOAN fROM THE BANKS OR fINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS ALONG WITH 
THE REASONS THEREOf

 As Company has not done any one time settlement during the year under review hence no disclosure is required.

50. fORMATION & dEVELOPMENT

 F & D department of your Company is dedicated to carrying out formulation & development aimed at creating 
scientific knowledge for new development and value additions in the field of Ayurvedic and Unani medicines. Your 
company has not incurred any expenditure on F & D during year.

51. QUALITY MANAGEMENT SYSTEMS

 During the year the company has obtained/renewed the certifications of ISo 9001:2015, GMP Certificates, 
Certificates from Pollution Department, Factory licence and other Statutory Compliance as required. 

52. CORPORATE COMMUNICATIONS

 Your Company has adopted a number of communication interventions to present itself as an organisation based on 
values and as a provider of quality medicines products at affordable costs, contributing to nation building. In order 



17

to facilitate dissemination of information and interaction with all stakeholders regarding announcements, updates, 
achievements, growth, recent developments on operational and financial front, besides updates on website and 
social media, regular press communiqué and press meetings have also been arranged by your Company.

53. VIGILANCE

 Vigilance activities are taken care by the Company Secretary, nominated during the year as Chief Vigilance officer 
of the company which strives to ensure probity & integrity at all levels in the Company by:

• Providing guidance, supervision and relevant assistance to its officials in the Company;

• Dissemination of preventive vigilance advises and system improvement directives to all its stakeholders;

• Conducting time to time vigilance inspections, investigation, systems studies to ensure adherence to the 
existing Rules and regulations of the Company;

• Keeping the competent authority appraised of vigilance findings from time to time to ensure appropriate 
corrective actions;

54. SUBSIdIARIES/ASSOCIATES ANd JOINT VENTURES

 Company does not have any Subsidiaries/Associates or Joint Venture of any type of business.

55. VIGIL MECHANISM/WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

 the Company has nominated an officer as Public Grievance officer of the Company, to provide a formal solution 
to the employees and officers and Public at large to report their concerns about unethical behaviour or violation 
of the Companies code of conduct.

56. SIGNIfICANT ANd MATERIAL ORdERS PASSEd BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE 
GOING CONCERN STATUS Of THE COMPANY.

 there are no significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals which would impact 
the going concern status of the company.

57. MATERIAL CHANGES ANd COMMITMENT, If ANY, AffECTING THE fINANCIAL POSITION

 no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company occurred between the end 
of the financial year to which this financial statement relate and on the date of this report.

58. AUdITORS

58.1 Statutory Auditors

 the Comptroller and Auditor General of India has appointed M/s Achal Srivastava & Co., Chartered 
Accountants, First Floor, Sunlight Complex opposite Khatu Shyam Mandir, talli Bamouri, Haldwani, Distt. 
nainital (Uttarakhand), as Statutory Auditor of the Company for financial year 2021-22. the observations/
qualifications made in the Auditors’ Report read together with relevant notes thereon are self- explanatory 
and hence, do not call for any further comments Under Section 134 of the Companies Act ,2013.

58.2 Cost Auditors

 M/s H. C. B. & Company, Cost Accountants, Delhi was appointed as Cost Auditor for the financial year 2019-
20 to conduct Cost Audit of the Accounts maintained by the Company in respect of the various products 
prescribed under Companies (Cost Record and Audit) Rules, 2014. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 
148 of the Act read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rule, 2014. the appointment of Cost Auditor 
has been approved by passing of resolution in the meeting of Board of Directors. Cost Audit Report for the 
aforesaid period is yet to be submitted.
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59. IMPACT Of COVId-19 PANdEMIC ON IMPCL

 Consumption of Ayurvedic medicines has increased during the CoVID-19 Pandemic. IMPCL has recorded growth in 
a particular segment due to supply of Immune Boosting Ayurvedic medicines to counter pandemic Covid-19 which 
contributed in a sizable manner to our turnover.

60. APPRECIATION ANd ACKNOWLEdGEMENTS

 Your Directors would like to make a special mention of the valuable guidance, support and co-operation your 
Company has been receiving from the Ministry of Ayush, Government of India and look forward to their continued 
support in all future endeavours.

 the Directors express their sincere thanks to the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, the Principal Director 
of Commercial Audit & ex-officio Member of Audit Board, Statutory Auditors, Cost Auditors and Internal Auditors 
for the co-operation and support extended by them.

 the Directors take this opportunity to thank the Company’s bankers, regulatory authorities, customers, vendors, 
consultants, technology licensors, contractors and other business associates and trading partners for their 
continued support and confidence reposed in the Company.

 Your Directors also place on record their deep appreciation to its employees at all levels for their hard work, 
dedication and commitment. the enthusiasm and unstinting efforts of the employees have enabled the Company 
to remain as industry leaders.

 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

 (dR. MUKESH KUMAR) (VikRAM SiNGh)
 MANAGING dIRECTOR dIRECTOR
 dIN: 08792177 dIN: 08559981

 PLACE: Mohan
 dATE: 20.10.2022
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ANNEXURE 1

ANNEXURE TO dIRECTORS’ REPORT

Information as per Section 134 (3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014 forming 
part of the Directors’ Report for the year ended 31st March 2022.

A. CONSERVATION Of ENERGY:

a. energy conservation measures taken:
 with the help of sun energy certain materials are being dried.

b. Additional investments and proposals, if any, being implemented for reduction of consumption of energy

 Solar dryer was installed by the Company.

c. Impact of the measures at (a) and (b) above for reduction of energy consumption and consequent impact on 
the cost of production of goods.

 Drying process with the help of sun energy saved energy (electricity) consumption and thereby reduction of 
cost of production of goods, data is not quantified.

d. total energy consumption and energy consumption per unit of production as per Form-A

a. Power and fuel Consumption

2021-22 2020-21

1. Electricity
 Purchase Unit
 total amount (In `)
 Rate/Unit (In `)

8,38,428
69,67,334.00

8.31

10,62,109
75,30,354.00

7.09

own Generation
through diesel generator Unit
 Units per Ltr. of diesel oil
 Cost/Unit

nA
nA
nA

nA
nA
nA

through Steam turbine/generator
 Units
 Units per Ltr. of diesel oil
 Cost/Unit

nA
nA
nA

nA
nA
nA

2. Coal (specify quality and where used)
Quantity (tonnes)
total Cost
Average rate

nIL
nIL
nIL

nIL
nIL
nIL

3. furnace Oil
Quantity (Kg./Ltr.)
total Amount
Average rate

nIL
nIL
nIL

nIL
nIL
nIL
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2021-22 2020-21

4. Other/internal generation**
(Kanda and Fire Wood)
Kanda:
Quantity (Kg.)
total Amount (`)
Rate

254522
12,72,610.00

5.00

210794
10,53,970.00

5.00

fire Wood:
Quantity (Qtl.)
total Amount (`)
Rate

8709.13
38,58,144.00

443

29795.30
30,24,819.00

101.52

diesel:
Quantity (Ltr.)
total Amount (`)
Average rate

1,26,262
1,10,94,631.00

87.87

1,13,382.62
82,24,775.00

72.54

 ** Purchased quantity and value given

b. Consumption per unit of production

Particulars 2021-22 2020-21

Electricity
Rupees
Unit

3.09 3.49

furnace oil
Rupees
Unit

nA nA

others specify fuel, (Kanda, firewood & diesel)
Rupees
Unit

7.19 5.71

B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION

a. efforts made in technology absorption as perr 
Form-B Research and Development (R & D)

1. Specific areas in which R & D Carried out by the 
Company 

•  Development and manufacturing of Drugs 
for CCRUM and CCRAS for Intra Mural Clinical 
Research Projects.

•  Conversion of Pills in to tablets.
•  Development of monograph on standard 

operational procedures (SoPs) of manufacturing 
process and quality standards of ASU/Bhasma 
formulation.

2. Benefits derived as a result of the above R & D Improvement in quality & business

3. Future plan of action Standardisation & process validation of ISM 
products.
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4. expenditure of R & D
a. Capital
b. Recurring
c. total
d. total R & D expenditure as a percentage of 

total turnover

-
-
-
-

 Technology absorption, adaptation and innovation

1. efforts, in brief, made towards technology 
absorption adaptation and innovation

the company has been developing formulations/
drugs for commercial production. It has its own 
facilities for testing of formulations/Drugs at all 
stages in production processes. 

2. Benefits derived as a result of the above efforts, 
e.g. product, improvement, cost reduction, product 
development import, substitution, etc.

Please see above.

3. In Case of imported technology (Imported during the last 5 years reckoned from the beginning of the 
financial year) following information may be furnished:

a. technology imported nIL

b. Year of Import nIL

c. Has technology been fully absorbed nIL

d. If not fully absorbed areas where nIL
 this has not taken place, reasons
 therefore and future plans of action.

C. fOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS ANd OUTGO

a. Activities relating to exports,
initiatives taken to increase exports
development of new export markets
for products and services and export plans

nIL

b. total foreign exchange used and earned. nIL

 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

 (dR. MUKESH KUMAR) (VikRAM SiNGh)

 MANAGING dIRECTOR dIRECTOR

 dIN: 08792177 dIN: 08559981

 PLACE: Mohan

 dATE: 20.10.2022
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ANNEXURE 2

I. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY ANd OTHER ACTIVITY

 Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) & Sustainability is an integral part of the Company’s ethos and policy and 
the Company has been pursuing this on a sustained basis. Company has continuously followed the Corporate 
Social Responsibility (CSR) guidelines issued by the Departments of Public enterprises (DPes). In last Financial Year, 
the Company has planned to spend allocated CSR funds in Cultivation of Medicines Plants, Imparting Vocational 
training, Promoting Cultivation of medicinal plants under Contracts farming systems, Medicinal Garden through 
aids from Medicinal Plant Board and Promoting livelihood by supporting cultivation of medicinal plants and buying 
same from the Self help Groups etc.

 In addition the CSR activity, the Company had given employment maximum to Local peoples. Around 82% i.e.71 
employees out of total strength i.e. 87 are from local area and surrounding hills. Besides this for the purpose of 
Production and other related works about 325 workers from the nearby areas are also engaged in the Company on 
daily wages basis. the Company is purchasing (available) raw material etc. locally besides from other places (total 
raw material items around 500) (i.e. increase in the per-capita income, removal of inequalities, Standard of living 
raised, improvement in the hills economy and of national income, development of ancillaries, upliftment of poor 
masses and backward area as such to some extent.)

II. REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

 Philosophy on Corporate Governance

 IMPCL has established a sound framework of Corporate Governance which underlines commitment to quality 
of governance, transparency disclosures, consistent stakeholders’ value enhancement and corporate social 
responsibility. IMPCL endeavours to transcend much beyond the regulatory framework and basic requirements 
of Corporate Governance, focusing consistently towards building confidence of its various stakeholders including 
shareholders, customers, employees, suppliers and the society at large. the company has developed a framework 
for ensuring transparency, disclosure and fairness to all, especially minority shareholders.

 the Corporate Governance Policy of IMPCL rests upon the four pillars of transparency, full disclosure, independent 
monitoring and fairness to all. our corporate structure, business procedures and disclosure practices have attained 
a sound equilibrium with our Corporate Governance policy resulting in achievement of goals as well as high level 
of business ethics.

 the company believes that conducting business in a manner that complies with the Corporate Governance 
procedures and Code of Conduct, exemplifies each of our core values and positions us to deliver long-term returns 
to our shareholders, favourable outcomes to our customers, attractive opportunities to our employees and making 
the suppliers our partners in progress & enriching the society.

 A brief description of the corporate governance practices followed in your Company is given below.

1. Composition of Board of directors:

 the composition of the Board represents an optimal mix of professionalism, knowledge and experience and 
enables the Board to discharge its responsibilities and provide effective leadership to the business. Your 
Company, being a Government Undertaking, the appointment/nomination of all the Directors is done by the 
President of India, through the Ministry of Ayush. the Board requires an appropriate mix of executive and non-
executive Directors during the year. the Articles of Association of the Company stipulates that the number of 
Directors shall not be less than three (3) and not more than ten (10).

 the present strength of Board of Directors of the Company is three (3) comprising

• Two (2) Part-time official Directors representing the Ministry of Ayush, Government of India

• One functional Director namely Managing Director appointed w.e.f. 06th July, 2020.

• One Independent Director appointed w.e.f 20.03.2022.



23

 the composition of the Board is under process to be in line with the Guidelines on Corporate Governance 
issued by the Department of Public enterprises, Government of India.

 Attendance of each Director at the Board Meetings held during 2021-22 and the last AGM

director’s Name S/shri No. of Board Meetings Last AGM for the year 2020-2021 
(held on 03.02.2022)Held Attended

Functional Director i.e. Managing Director

Dr. Mukesh Kumar 07 07 Yes

PART-TIME OffICIAL dIRECTORS – GOVT. NOMINEES

Shri Vikram Singh 07 07 Yes

Shri Raj Kumar 07 06 Yes

INdEPENdENT dIRECTOR

Dr S K Srinath 07 nil* no

  *Appointed w.e.f. 20.03.2022 as Independent Director.

 the above attendance of Directors is showing their presence in the meeting of Board of Directors, either as 
Director or as special invitees also.

 details of directorships, Committee Memberships and Committee Chairmanship in other companies as on 
31st March, 2022

 no Director of the company is a member or Chairman of any other company or their Committees

 Disclosure of relationship between Directors inter-se: NIL

2. Meeting

 the notice and Agenda notes of the Board Meetings are circulated to the Directors as far as possible well in 
advance. During the financial year under review, seven Board meetings were held on 05.04.2021, 21.05.2021, 
27.09.2021, 01.10.2021, 16.11.2021, 03.02.2022, 23.02.2022 and AGM for the year 2020-21 held on 
03.02.2022.

3. Remuneration of directors

 Ministry of Ayush, Government of India appoints Managing Director. the remuneration and terms and 
conditions of the Managing Director are decided by Department of Public enterprises. the Managing Director 
is appointed for a period of five years or till the date of their superannuation or until further orders, whichever 
is earlier.

 non-official part-time Directors are also appointed by the Ministry of Ayush, Government of India for a period 
as directed in their letter of appointment. Such part time official Directors are not paid any remuneration for 
attending meeting of the Board and the Board appointed Sub Committees.

4. Appointment of key Managerial Personnel

 Pursuant to the provisions of Section 203 of Companies Act 2013 read with Companies (Appointment & 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules 2014, which have come into force from 1st April, 2014 the 
following Directors/executives as the Key Managerial Personnel (KMPs) of the Company was appointed during 
the year on their existing terms & conditions of appointment, including remuneration as on the date of this 
report:

dIN/PAN full Name Designation

08792177 Dr. Mukesh Kumar Managing Director

08559981 SHRI VIKRAM SInGH nominee Director
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dIN/PAN full Name Designation

08659789 SHRI RAJ KUMAR nominee Director

BKZPK9980R PAnKAJ KUMAR JHA Company Secretary

AIFPA8977P ARVInD KUMAR AGGARWAL AGM (F&A)

 During the year vide office order no. 02/37/2021-eo(ACC) Dr. S K Srinath was appointed as Independent 
Director of the company w.e.f 20.03.2022 and Shri Arvind Kumar Aggarwal, AGM (F&A) was appointed as Key 
Managerial Personnel w.e.f 15.06.2022 as approved by the Board of Directors in their Meeting.

5. COMPANY POLICIES

5.1 Policy on dealing with Related Party transactions:

 the Company strictly follows all relevant provisions in the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Meetings 
of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 on dealing with Related Party transactions.

5.2 Nomination and Remuneration Policy:

 IMPCL being a Government Company, the power to appoint Directors and to fix their remuneration vests with 
Government of India. the Company is governed under DPe Guidelines regarding the Remuneration Policies 
of Directors. the Company had complied with the relevant guidelines prescribed by the Department of Public 
enterprises in this regard.

6. BOARd CHARTER

 As trustees of the Company, the Board ensures that the Company has clear goals and policies for achievement 
which are in alignment with the Vision and Mission of the company. the Board provides strategic directions, 
reviews corporate performance, authorizes and monitors strategic decisions, ensures regulatory compliances and 
safeguards interest of stakeholders. the Board of Directors adhere to the Board Charter adopted by the Board of 
Directors, which clearly sets out the role, structure, responsibilities and operation of Company’s Board of Directors 
and its delegation of authority.

7. SECRETARIAL STANdARdS

 During the year under review the Central Government has approved the Secretarial Standards on Meetings of the 
Board of Directors (SS-1) and Secretarial Standards on General Meetings (SS-2). these Standards came into force 
on 01st July 2015 respectively. Adherence by the Company to these Standards is mandatory as per the provisions 
of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, your Company has substantially complied with both the Standards. the 
SS 1 and SS 2 prescribes a set of principles for convening and conducting the Meetings of the Board of Directors, 
meetings of Committees, General Meetings and such other matters related thereto.

8. General Body meetings:

 the Date, time and Venue of the last three Annual General Meetings of the Company are as follows:

AGM financial Year date Time Venue

41st 2018-19 15.02.2020 03.30 P.M MoHAn

42nd 2019-20 26.02.2021 12:00 P.M through Video 
Conferencing

43rd 2020-21 03.02.2022 05.30 P.M through Video 
Conferencing
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 Date, time and Venue of 44th Annual General Meeting of the Company

AGM financial Year date Time Venue

44th 2021-22 21.10.2022 9.30 A.M Mohan

9. Means of Communication

 Plant Locations:

• Mohan, Via-Ram Nagar, District-Almora, Uttarakhand-244715

 Address for Correspondence:

the address for the registered office of the Company is:

Mohan, Via-Ram nagar, District-Almora, Uttarakhand-244715

Address for Corporate office is B-261, okhla Phase-I, new Delhi-110020

for and on behalf of the Board of directors of
INdIAN MEdICINES PHARMACEUTICAL CORPORATION LIMITEd

(dR. MUKESH KUMAR) (VikRAM SiNGh)

MANAGING dIRECTOR dIRECTOR

dIN: 08792177 dIN: 08559981

PLACE: Mohan

dATE: 20.10.2022
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M/s indian Medicines Pharmaceutical Corporation Limited 
 Mohan, Dist.- Almora (Via Ramnagar), Uttarakhand-244715 

Balance Sheet as on 31st March 2022
 (Amount in `) 

S. No. Particulars Note 
No.

 As at 31st March 2022  As at 31st March 2021 

I.  Equity & Liabilities 
1  Shareholders’ funds 
 (a)  Share Capital 3                51,98,00,000.00                   51,98,00,000.00 
 (b)  Reserves and Surplus 4                65,91,23,051.03                   33,96,50,542.61 
2 Share Application Money Pending For Allotment  
3 Non Current Liabilities 
 (a)  Long Term Provisions (Leave Encashment and Gratituty) 5                  1,20,07,279.00                        92,54,575.00 
4  Current Liabilities 
 (a)  Short term Borrowings (Bank oD) 6                                         -                                              -   
 (b)  trade Payables (Creditor) 7                68,07,71,035.22                   32,15,63,187.00 
 (c)  Other Current Liabilities (Security, advances) 8                55,64,99,103.76                   26,91,73,732.54 
 (d) Short-term Provisions 9                17,54,34,663.65                     6,67,16,540.62 

Total            2,60,36,35,132.66              1,52,61,58,577.77 
II. Assets 
1 Non Current Assets  
 (a) fixed Assets 10
  (i)   tangible Fixed Assets                23,67,07,916.73                   25,43,27,180.07 
  (ii)  Capital Work-in-Progress                        3,80,000.00                        14,42,885.00 
  (b)   Deferred tax Assets 11                  1,36,80,743.00                     1,32,81,748.00 
  (c)   Long term Loans and Advances 12                     25,82,160.96                        16,27,503.45 
2  Current assets 
  (a)   Inventories 13                46,04,73,364.25                   32,44,79,512.02 
  (b)   trade Receivables 14                29,55,77,900.28                   23,72,56,029.70 
  (c)   Cash and Cash equivalents 15             1,16,46,19,207.38                   45,75,79,264.94 
  (d)   Short-term Loans and Advances 16                15,68,23,280.00                     5,39,44,611.86 
  (e)   other Current Assets 17                27,27,90,560.06                   18,22,19,842.73 

Total            2,60,36,35,132.66              1,52,61,58,577.77 
 Corporate information 1
 Significant Accounting Policies 2
 Notes of financial Statements 3-29
 The Accompanying note No. 1 to 29 and Significant Accounting Policies form an integral part of the financial statement  

For M/S indian Medicines Pharmaceutical Corporation Ltd.
 

Place : Mohan
Date: 26.08.2022    

  

Arvind kumar Aggarwal Pankaj kumar Jha Mukesh Kumar Vikram Singh
AGM (f &A) (Company Secretary) (Managing Director) (director)
Membership No. 32501 Membership No.  A27214 dIN No. 08792177 dIN No. 08559981

      
      
     fOR: ACHAL SRIVASTAVA & CO.
     Chartered Accountants
     Firm Registration No. : 013385C
      
      
     (Sanjay kumar Gupta) 
     Partner
     Membership No.: 408105
     Place : Haldwani
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M/s indian Medicines Pharmaceutical Corporation Limited 
 Mohan, Dist.- Almora (Via Ramnagar), Uttarakhand-244715 

Statement of Profit & Loss for the Year ended 31st March 2022
    (Amount in `) 

S. No. Particulars Note 
No.

 for the Year Ended 
31.03.22  

 for the Year Ended 
31.03.21 

I Revenue from Operations (Gross)      2,60,84,31,549.80     1,64,01,89,619.41 
 Less: excise Duty & Service tax                                   -                                   -   
 Revenue from Operations (Net) 18     2,60,84,31,549.80     1,64,01,89,619.41 
II other Income 19           2,69,82,636.23          1,45,10,822.77 
III Total Revenue ( I + II)    2,63,54,14,186.03    1,65,47,00,442.18 
IV Expenses:    
 Cost of Materials Consummed 20     1,36,42,17,520.91        85,22,44,385.82 
 Change in Inventories of Stock in trade 21         (6,15,51,289.68)         (1,42,62,404.19)
 Employee Benefits Expenses 22        17,48,26,207.36        17,34,27,685.46 
 Financial Cost 23                                  -                  2,40,722.00 
 Depreciation and Amoritization Expenses 10           2,96,03,925.81          3,19,03,562.20 
 other expenses 24        67,46,58,710.21        45,45,64,163.95 

  Total Expenses (IV)    2,18,17,55,074.61    1,49,81,18,115.24 
V Profit / (Loss) before Exeptional, Prior Period And Extra Ordinary items and Tax  

(III-IV)] 
        45,36,59,111.42        15,65,82,326.94 

Vi Exceptional items                                   -                                   -   
VII Prior Period Expenes/(Income) (Net) 25               (4,31,090.00)              (3,21,539.04)
VIII Extra Ordinary Items                                   -                                   -   
IX Profit / (Loss) Before Tax (V-Vi-Vii-Viii)         45,40,90,201.42       15,69,03,865.98 
X Tax Expense:    
 (1) Current tax         12,40,67,106.00          5,31,47,837.00 
 (2) Earlier Year Taxation             (72,12,919.00)                2,39,152.00 
 (3) Deferred tax 11               (3,98,995.00)            (69,99,767.00)
XI Profit / (Loss) For the Period From Continuing Operations         33,76,35,009.42        11,05,16,643.98 
XII Profit / (Loss) For the Period          33,76,35,009.42       11,05,16,643.98 
XIII earnings per equity Share 26   
 Face value of Rupees 10 each    
 (A) Basic                              6.50                             2.13 
 (B) Diluted                              6.50                             2.13 

 Corporate infromation 1   
 Significant Accounting Policies 2   
 Notes of financial Statements 3 to 29   
  The Accompanying note No. 1 to 29 and Significant Accounting Policies form an integral part of the financial statement  
     

For M/S indian Medicines Pharmaceutical Corporation Ltd.
     
Place : Mohan    
Date: 26.08.2022    
     
Arvind kumar Aggarwal Pankaj kumar Jha            Mukesh Kumar  Vikram Singh 
AGM (f &A) (Company Secretary)         (Managing Director)       (director) 
Membership No. 32501 Membership No.  A27214          dIN No. 08792177  dIN No. 08559981 
 
     
    fOR: ACHAL SRIVASTAVA & CO.
    Chartered Accountants
    Firm Registration No. : 013385C
     
     
    (Sanjay kumar Gupta) 
    Partner
    Membership No.: 408105
    Place : Haldwani
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M/s indian Medicines Pharmaceutical Corporation Limited 
 Mohan, Dist.- Almora (Via Ramnagar), Uttarakhand-244715 

Cash flow Statement for the Year ended 31st March 2022
(Amount in `) 

Particulars
 Year Ended  
31.03.2022 

 Year Ended  
31.03.2021 

A. CASH fLOW fROM OPERATING ACTIVITES   
 Net Profit Before Tax as per Profit and Loss Statement                       45,40,90,201.42                                   15,69,03,865.98 
 Amount withdrawn out of Reserve & Surplus   
 Adjustments for:   
 Depreciation and Amortization Expenses                         2,96,93,375.08                                     3,19,03,562.20 
 Provision for Leave Salary                            89,76,388.00                                        32,02,539.00 
 Provision for Gratuity                            29,64,644.00                                        60,52,036.00 
 Provision for Doubtful Debts                         3,47,94,609.68                                     2,86,75,196.71 
 Interest on FDR / others                        (2,50,48,560.73)                                   (1,30,05,345.49)
 Prior Period Income / expenses                             (4,31,090.00)                                        (3,21,539.04)
 Gratuity Paid                            (60,24,625.40)                                   (1,58,66,708.00)
 Leave encashment Paid                            (31,63,703.00)                                      (32,54,857.00)
 Finance Cost                                              -                                            2,40,722.00 
 Garden Produce Income                                (38,832.50)                                           (26,711.50)
 Ex-Gratia Provided (Net)                            13,56,576.00                                        14,09,179.00 
 Bonus Provided (net)                            16,13,619.00                                        16,94,857.00 
 Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes                       49,87,82,601.55                                   19,76,06,796.86 
 Adjustments for Working Capital Change   

 
(Increase)/Decrease in Long term Loans & Advances  (other than Provision for 
Doubtful Debts)                             (9,54,657.51)                                          6,34,535.61 

 
(Increase)/Decrease in Short term Loans & Advances(other than Advance tax Paid 
& earlier Year tax)                          4,68,34,250.86                                          1,22,283.14 

 (Increase)/Decrease in other Current Assets                        (9,05,70,717.33)                                   (6,37,08,711.65)
 (Increase)/Decrease in Inventory (other than Garden Produce Income)                      (13,59,55,019.73)                                   (5,47,34,145.29)

 
(Increase)/Decrease in Trade Receivables  (Other Than Provision for Doubtful 
Debts)                        (9,31,16,480.26)                                     9,97,06,874.36 

 Increase/(Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities (Other Than Prior Period Exp.)                       28,77,56,461.22                                   (4,49,42,414.26)

 
Increase/(Decrease) in Short term Provision (other than Bonus Provided net, 
Current tax & CSR Provision)                        (1,99,04,181.97)                                      (76,52,517.25)

 Increase/(Decrease) in trade Payables                       35,92,07,848.22                                   (6,31,81,933.95)
 Cash Generated from Operations                       85,20,80,105.05                                     6,38,50,767.57 
 taxes Paid (net)                      (14,25,00,000.00)                                   (3,00,00,000.00)
 Interest received other than FDRS                              8,46,018.73                                             43,137.49 
 Net Cash from Operating Activities (A)                       71,04,26,123.78                                     3,38,93,905.06 
B. CASH fLOW fROM INVESTING ACTIVITES   
 Purchase of Fixed Assets                        (1,10,11,226.34)                                      (75,54,527.57)
 Sales of Fixed Assets                                                7,000.00 
 Interest received on FDRS                         2,42,02,542.00                                     1,29,62,208.00 
 Net Cash (Used in) investing Activities (B)                         1,31,91,315.66                                        54,14,680.43 
C. CASH fLOW fROM fINANCING ACTIVITES   
 Finance Cost                                              -                                          (2,40,722.00)
 Dividend Paid                         (1,65,77,497.00)                                                         -   
 Net Cash (Used in) / Generated from Financing Activities (c)                        (1,65,77,497.00)                                        (2,40,722.00)
 net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash equivalents (A+B+C)                       70,70,39,942.44                                     3,90,67,863.49 
 opening Balance of Cash and Cash equivalents                       45,75,79,264.94                                   41,85,11,401.45 
 Closing Balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents                    1,16,46,19,207.38                                   45,75,79,264.94 
 Components of Cash & Cash Equivalents   
 Cash in Hand                                        48.00                                                    47.00 
 Postage Stamp in Hand                                   8,661.00                                               1,022.00 
 Balances With SBI  Mohan                        51,56,93,753.87                                   11,98,01,506.44 
 Balances With SBI new Delhi                            49,33,276.52                                        44,50,307.52 
 Balances With Corporation Bank (Haridwar)                              5,19,733.72                                          5,19,733.72 
 Balances With SBI  Mohan CC Account                              2,45,317.03                                          1,10,534.28 
 Balances With Axis Bank Ltd.                            69,36,691.15                                          2,55,084.89 
 Balances With SBI Mohan A/c (Project Fund)                         2,10,46,588.09                                     3,17,68,676.09 
 Fixed Deposits with 3 Months (Lien)                                              -                                                           -   
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 Fixed Deposits with 3 Months (Free)                         2,09,47,119.00                                   15,07,71,128.00 
 Fixed Deposits with more than 3 Months (but less than 12 months maturity) (Free)                       25,35,76,909.00                                     8,28,95,352.00 
 Fixed Deposits with more than 3 Months (but less than 12 months maturity) (Lien)                              4,00,000.00                                                         -   
 Fixed Deposit with more than 12 months maturity(Free)                       33,85,59,110.00                                     6,70,05,873.00 
 Fixed Deposit with more than 12 months maturity (Lien)                            17,52,000.00                                                         -   
 Corporate information 1  
 Significant Accounting Policies 2  
 Notes of financial Statements 3 to 29  
 The Accompanying note No. 1 to 29 and Significant Accounting Policies form an integral part of the  financial statement  

For M/S indian Medicines Pharmaceutical Corporation Ltd.
  
Place : Mohan  
Date: 26.08.2022  
  
  
 Arvind kumar Aggarwal                                           Pankaj kumar Jha                                                                         Mukesh kumar                               Vikram Singh
AGM (F &A)                                                              (Company Secretary)                                                                  (Managing Director)                             (Director)
 Membership No. 32501                                     Membership No.  A27214                                                                  dIN No. 08792177                         dIN No. 08559981
  
 fOR: ACHAL SRIVASTAVA & CO.
 Chartered Accountants
 Firm Registration No. : 013385C
  
  
 (Sanjay kumar Gupta) 
 Partner
 Membership No.: 408105
   Place : Haldwani
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M/s Indian Medicines Pharmaceutical Corporation Limited  
Mohan, Dist.- Almora (Via Ramnagar), Uttarakhand-244715 

Notes forming part of Financial Statements 
(Annexed to and forming part of the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended on 31st March 2022 and the Balance sheet as on 31st March 2022)

1. CORPORATE INfORMATION:

 the company, a Public Sector Company owned & controlled by Ministry of Ayush, Govt. of India, was incorpo-
rated under the provisions of Companies Act, 1956. Its Corporate Identification number CIn is –U24231UR-
1978GoI004637. the Company is engaged in the business of Manufacturing & trading of Ayurvedic & Unani 
Medicines.

 the Factory is located in a thick forest area. In view of nature of the product of the Company and being a small 
project, necessary environment conditions have also been maintained.

2.  SIGNIfICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

2.1 BASIS Of PREPARATION Of fINANCIAL STATEMENTS:

 the Financial Statements have been prepared as of a going concern on historical cost convention and on “Ac-
crual Method of Accounting” unless otherwise stated, in accordance with the generally accepted accounting 
principles and the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, as adopted consistently by the company, except in 
case of Commission to Market Organizers /Distributors which becomes payable/provision on realization of sale 
proceeds.

2.2 fIXEd ASSETS:

 a. the ‘Gross Block’ of the Fixed Assets is stated at the historical cost of the acquisition/construction.

 b.  Depreciation on the Fixed Assets is provided on the basis of life specified in the schedule II to the Companies 
Act, 2013.

2.3 INVENTORY VALUATION:

 Raw material, Packing material, Stores and Consumable have been valued at cost, work-in-process at estimated 
cost and the finished goods have been valued at cost or net realizable value, whichever is lower.

2.4 CLAIMS:

 Claims received from Insurance Company for loss in transit are accounted for on “receipt” basis.

2.5 GRATUITY:

 the company has participated in a policy under “Group Gratuity Cash Accumulation Scheme” with Life Insur-
ance Corporation of India for gratuity payable to the employees. Provision for liabilities in respect of Gratuity is 
made on the basis of Actuarial Valuation made by Life Insurance Corporation of India as at the date of Balance 
Sheet.

2.6 BONUS:

 As per directives of the Department of Public enterprises, the Central Public Sector Undertakings covered Under 
Section 20 of the Payment of Bonus Act, has been following such directives.

2.7 LEAVE ENCASHMENT LIABILITY: 

 Leave encashment liability is provided on “accrual basis” as per the certificate of Actuary valuation as at the 
date of Balance Sheet. the company has participated in a policy under “Leave encashment Scheme” with Life 
Insurance Corporation Limited for Leave encashment payable to the employees. 

2.8 REVENUE RECOGNITION:

 Sales are accounted for on the basis of date of Invoices for confirmed orders and ascertained goods and are net 
of Sales Returns, Rebates, Price Concessions and trade- tax.
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M/s indian Medicines Pharmaceutical Corporation Limited  
Mohan, Dist.- Almora (Via Ramnagar), Uttarakhand-244715 

Notes forming part of Financial Statements 
(Annexed to and forming part of the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended on 31st March 2022 and the Balance sheet as on 31st March 2022)

3 Share Capital (Amount in `)

 Particulars  Number of 
Shares 

 As at 31  
March 2022 

 Number of  
Shares 

 As at 31  
March 2021 

 Authorized

 equity Shares of ` 10/- each  7,50,00,000.00 75,00,00,000.00 7,50,00,000.00 75,00,00,000.00 

 Total  7,50,00,000.00 75,00,00,000.00 7,50,00,000.00 75,00,00,000.00 

 Issued

 equity Shares of ` 10/- each fully paid-up  5,19,80,000.00 51,98,00,000.00 5,19,80,000.00 51,98,00,000.00 

 Total  5,19,80,000.00 51,98,00,000.00 5,19,80,000.00 51,98,00,000.00 

 Subscribed & Paid up

 equity Shares of ` 10/- each fully paid-up  5,19,80,000.00 51,98,00,000.00 5,19,80,000.00 51,98,00,000.00 

 Total  5,19,80,000.00 51,98,00,000.00 5,19,80,000.00 51,98,00,000.00 

3.1 Reconciliation of Number of Shares 

  Particulars  As at 31 March 2022  As at 31 March 2021 

  Number of 
Shares 

 (Amount in ` )  Number of Shares  (Amount in ` )

 Equity Shares

 opening Balance  5,19,80,000.00 51,98,00,000.00 5,19,80,000.00 51,98,00,000.00 

 Change During the Year  -  -  -  - 

 Closing Balance  5,19,80,000.00  51,98,00,000.00  5,19,80,000.00  51,98,00,000.00 

 3.2 there was no equity shares issued during the year ended 31st March 2022 

 3.3 Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares

 the Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of ` 10/- per share. 

 All equity Share rank parri passu in respect of Divident, Vote & other rights. 

 3.4 Details of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate equity shares in the Company. 

 Name of Shareholder  As at 31 March 2022  As at 31 March 2021 

  No. of Shares 
held 

 % of holding  No. of Shares 
held 

 % of holding

  President of India along with nominees  5,10,00,000.00  98.11  5,10,00,000.00  98.11 

4  Reserves & Surplus (Amount in `)

 Particulars  As at 31 March 
2022 

 As at 31 March 
2021 

  (a) Capital Reserve  

  Balance as at the beginning of the year  4,40,320.00  4,40,320.00 

  Balance as at the end of the year  4,40,320.00  4,40,320.00 

  (b) Surplus/ (Deficit) as per Statement of Profit & Loss 

  Balance as at the beginning of the year  33,92,10,222.61  22,99,59,703.63 

  Add / Less: Surplus / Deficit for the year  33,76,35,009.42  11,05,16,643.98 

  Less: Dividend for 2020-21  (1,65,77,497.00)  - 

  Less: Fund transfer for CSR  (15,85,004.00)  (12,66,125.00)

  Total  65,86,82,731.03  33,92,10,222.61 

 Grand Total  65,91,23,051.03  33,96,50,542.61 

5  Long Term Provisions (Amount in `)

 Particulars  As at 31 March 
2022 

 As at 31 March 
2021 

  Provision For Employee benefits  1,20,07,279.00  92,54,575.00 

 Total  1,20,07,279.00  92,54,575.00 
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M/s Indian Medicines Pharmaceutical Corporation Limited  
Mohan, Dist.- Almora (Via Ramnagar), Uttarakhand-244715 

Notes forming part of Financial Statements 
(Annexed to and forming part of the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended on 31st March 2022 and the Balance sheet as on 31st March 2022)

6 Short Term Borrowings  (Amount in `)

 Particulars  As at 31 March 
2022 

 As at 31 March 
2021 

 Secured

 Cash Credit from SBI, Mohan  -  - 

 Total  -  - 

 note: SBI CC Account has been shown under Schedule of Cash & Cash equivalent note n0.15 

7 Trade Payables (Amount in `)

 Particulars  As at 31 March 
2022 

 As at 31 March 
2021 

 Sundry Creditors payable within normal operating cycle  68,07,71,035.22  32,15,63,187.00 

 Total  68,07,71,035.22  32,15,63,187.00 

8 Other Current Liabilities (Amount in `)

 Particulars  As at 31 March 
2022 

 As at 31 March 
2021 

 trade / Security Deposits  1,11,79,143.00  83,63,742.00 

 Creditors for Capital expenditure  60,55,605.00  76,74,134.00 

 Liabilities for Expenses Creditor  15,54,25,814.78  14,64,14,906.76 

 Statutory dues  1,37,75,581.00  1,17,60,634.00 

 Advance from Customers  36,95,27,726.98  9,26,65,926.98 

 Staff Creditors  82,615.00  7,45,550.00 

 other Payables  4,52,618.00  15,48,838.80 

 Total  55,64,99,103.76  26,91,73,732.54 

9 Short Term Provisions (Amount in `)

 Particulars  As at 31 March 
2022 

 As at 31 March 
2021 

 Provision for Income tax  12,40,67,106.00  5,31,47,837.00 

 Provision for Employees Benefits  41,02,172.00  42,36,013.00 

 Provision for expenses  4,41,91,938.65  78,44,267.62 

 CSR fund  30,73,447.00  14,88,423.00 

 Total  17,54,34,663.65  6,67,16,540.62 
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M/s Indian Medicines Pharmaceutical Corporation Limited  
Mohan, Dist.- Almora (Via Ramnagar), Uttarakhand-244715 

Notes forming part of Financial Statements 
(Annexed to and forming part of the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended on 31st March 2022 and the Balance sheet as on 31st March 2022)

11 deferred Tax Asset/Liability  (Amount in `)

 Particulars  As at 31 March 2022  As at 31 March 2021 

 WDV As per Companies Act, 2013  23,67,07,916.59  25,43,27,180.07 

 WDV As per Income tax Act, 1961  24,12,93,523.22  (45,85,606.63)  25,89,03,768.76  (45,76,588.69)

 DTL/ (DTA) related to fixed assets (A)  (11,54,105.00)  (13,32,703.00)

 Provision for Gratuity  29,92,055.00  60,52,036.00 

 Provision for Leave encashment  90,15,224.00  32,02,539.00 

 Provision for doubtful debts  3,47,94,609.68  2,86,75,196.71 

 Bonus Payable  16,13,619.00  16,94,857.00 

 Ex-Gratia / PLI Payable  13,56,576.00  14,09,179.00 

 Total  4,97,72,083.68  4,10,33,807.71 

 (DtA) related to disallowance under the I.t. Act, 1961 (B)  (1,25,26,638.00)  (1,19,49,045.00)

 Total Direct Tax Liabilities / (Assets) (A+B)  (1,36,80,743.00)  (1,32,81,748.00)

 Less: Deferred tax liability/(Assets) b/d  (1,32,81,748.00)  (62,81,981.00)

 Provision for deferred Tax for the year  (3,98,995.00)  (69,99,767.00)

12 Long Term Loans and Advances (Amount in `)

 Particulars  As at 31 March 
2022 

 As at 31 March 
2021 

 (Unsecured and considered good)

 Security Deposits  34,67,531.96  28,06,784.96 

 Less: Provision for Doubtful Security Deposit  (18,45,589.00)  16,21,942.96  (18,45,589.00)

 Advance to Creditors  4,90,244.00  1,96,333.49 

 Less: Provision for Long Doubtful Advance  (1,31,576.00)  3,58,668.00  (1,31,576.00)

 (Secured and considered good)

 Advances for Capital Goods  6,01,550.00  6,01,550.00 

 Total  25,82,160.96  16,27,503.45 

13 Inventories (Amount in `)

 Particulars  As at 31 March 
2022 

 As at 31 March 
2021 

 Finished goods  11,14,10,578.53  4,80,10,338.77 

 Work-in-progress  12,53,57,045.48  12,63,33,612.61 

 Stock Loan License  1,22,95,637.22  1,31,68,020.17 

 Raw Material  18,45,47,934.24  11,84,81,263.86 

 Packing Material  2,31,78,815.35  1,64,32,634.61 

 Diesel  3,06,539.10  2,32,186.50 

 electrical Items  5,17,425.59  3,31,787.00 

 engg Items  11,46,764.76  8,74,784.00 

 Consumable & Housekeeping Items  4,72,674.95  2,57,040.00 

 Printing & Stationary  2,84,781.03  2,47,243.00 

 Building Material  9,55,168.00  1,10,601.50 

 Total  46,04,73,364.25  32,44,79,512.02 

 details of Inventory  As at 31 March 2022  As at 31 March 2021 

  Opening  Closing  Opening  Closing 

 L. L. Purchase Item in Stock

 Broad category 1  1,31,68,020.17  1,22,95,637.22  63,31,291.52  1,31,68,020.17 

 other  -  -  -  - 

  Total  1,31,68,020.17  1,22,95,637.22  63,31,291.52  1,31,68,020.17 

 finished Goods

 Broad category 1  4,80,10,338.77  11,14,10,578.53  6,54,13,923.14  4,80,10,338.77 

 other  -  -  -  - 

  Total  4,80,10,338.77  11,14,10,578.53  6,54,13,923.14  4,80,10,338.77 
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M/s Indian Medicines Pharmaceutical Corporation Limited  
Mohan, Dist.- Almora (Via Ramnagar), Uttarakhand-244715 

Notes forming part of Financial Statements 
(Annexed to and forming part of the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended on 31st March 2022 and the Balance sheet as on 31st March 2022)

 Work in progress

 Broad category 1  12,63,33,612.61  12,53,57,045.48  10,15,04,352.70  12,63,33,612.61 

 other  -  -  -  - 

  Total  12,63,33,612.61  12,53,57,045.48  10,15,04,352.70  12,63,33,612.61 

 Raw Material  11,84,81,263.86  18,45,47,934.24  7,95,28,769.35  11,84,81,263.86 

 Packing Material  1,64,32,634.61  2,31,78,815.35  1,53,29,726.02  1,64,32,634.61 

 Stores  20,53,642.00  36,83,353.43  16,10,592.50  20,53,642.00 

  Total  13,69,67,540.47  21,14,10,103.02  9,64,69,087.87  13,69,67,540.47 

  Grand Total  32,44,79,512.02  46,04,73,364.25  26,97,18,655.23  32,44,79,512.02 

14 Trade Receivables (Amount in `)

 Particulars  As at 31 March 
2022 

 As at 31 March 
2021 

 (Unsecured; considered good unless stated otherwise)

 a) trade Receivables outstanding for a period exceeding 6 months from the date they were 
due for payment: 

 -Considered good  7,87,74,834.57  14,85,13,316.26 

 -Considered doubtful  6,14,92,641.39  2,66,98,031.71 

 Less: Provision for Doubtful Debts  (6,14,92,641.39)  7,87,74,834.57  (2,66,98,031.71)

 b) others  21,68,03,065.71  8,87,42,713.44 

 Total  29,55,77,900.28  23,72,56,029.70 

15 Cash and Cash Equivalents (Amount in `)

 Particulars  As at 31 March 
2022 

 As at 31 March 
2021 

 Cash and Cash Equivalents

 Cash in Hand  48.00  47.00 

 Postage Stamp in Hand  8,661.00  1,022.00 

 Balances With SBI Mohan  51,56,93,753.87  11,98,01,506.44 

 Balances With SBI new Delhi  49,33,276.52  44,50,307.52 

 Balances With Corporation Bank a/c (Haridwar Plant)  5,19,733.72  5,19,733.72 

 Balances With Axis Bank - Ramnagar  69,36,691.15  2,55,084.89 

 Balances With SBI Mohan A/c (Project Fund)  2,10,46,588.09  3,17,68,676.09 

 Balances With SBI CC Account Mohan  2,45,317.03  1,10,534.28 

 Fixed Deposits with 3 Months (Free)  2,09,47,119.00  15,07,71,128.00 

 Fixed Deposits with 3 Months (Lien)  -  - 

 Other Bank Balances 

 Fixed Deposits with more than 3 Months (but less than 12 months maturity) (Free)  25,35,76,909.00  8,28,95,352.00 

 Fixed Deposits with more than 3 Months (but less than 12 months maturity) (Lien)  4,00,000.00  - 

 Fixed Deposit with more than 12 months maturity(Free)  33,85,59,110.00  6,70,05,873.00 

 Fixed Deposit with more than 12 months maturity (Lien)  17,52,000.00  - 

 Total  1,16,46,19,207.38  45,75,79,264.94 

16 Short-Term Loans and Advances (Amount in `)

 Particulars  As at 31 March 
2022 

 As at 31 March 
2021 

 (Unsecured and considered good)

 Advance to Staff  -  1,568.54 

 Festival advance to Staff  8,79,500.00  4,12,000.00 

 Medical Advance to Staff  1,28,167.00  3,71,614.00 

 Prepaid expenses  18,65,007.00  14,78,982.32 

 Advance tax & tDS  15,39,50,606.00  5,16,80,447.00 

 Total  15,68,23,280.00  5,39,44,611.86 
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Notes forming part of Financial Statements 
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17 Other Current Assets (Amount in `)

 Particulars  As at 31 March 
2022 

 As at 31 March 
2021 

 Interest accrued on FDR  87,95,490.00  26,09,413.00 

 Duty & taxes (Refundable)  23,85,13,465.06  15,82,18,533.73 

 other Receivables (ePFo)  1,12,57,094.00  1,12,57,094.00 

 tDS on GSt (Receivable)  1,42,24,511.00  1,01,34,802.00 

  Total  27,27,90,560.06  18,22,19,842.73 

18 Revenue From Operations (Amount in `)

 Particulars  Year ended 
31/03/2022 

 Year ended 
31/03/2021 

 Sales of Goods/Products

 Finished Goods  2,60,84,31,549.80  1,64,01,89,619.41 

 Total  2,60,84,31,549.80  1,64,01,89,619.41 

19 Other Income (Amount in `)

 Particulars  Year ended 
31/03/2022 

 Year ended 
31/03/2021 

 Garden produce income  38,832.50  26,711.50 

 Interest on Bank FDR  2,42,02,542.00  1,29,62,208.00 

 Interest from others Source  39,426.73  43,137.49 

 other Income  10,06,453.00  8,23,104.28 

 Scrap Sales  8,88,790.00  6,55,661.50 

 Interest on Income tax refund  8,06,592.00  - 

 Total  2,69,82,636.23  1,45,10,822.77 

20 Consumption of Materials (Amount in `)

 Particulars  Year ended 
31/03/2022 

 Year ended 
31/03/2021 

(A) Purchases 

 Raw Material  56,06,77,010.95  46,75,92,501.27 

 Packing Material  16,88,09,581.50  9,97,65,831.57 

 Purchase against Loan License  43,60,34,650.48  24,77,44,108.57 

 Semi Finished Goods  27,06,18,340.14  7,69,23,093.51 

 Consumable Goods  8,90,788.96  2,74,254.00 

  total Purchases (a)  1,43,70,30,372.03  89,22,99,788.92 

(B) Closing Stock  20,77,26,749.59  13,49,13,898.47 

 Less: opening Stock  13,49,13,898.47  9,48,58,495.37 

  net Increase/(Decrease) (b)  7,28,12,851.12  4,00,55,403.10 

 Materials Consumed (a)-(b)  1,36,42,17,520.91  85,22,44,385.82 

 Consumption of Raw Material  Year Ended 31/03/2022  Year Ended 31/03/2021 

  Amount  % Amount %

 Indigenous 49,46,10,340.57 100%  42,86,40,006.76 100%

 Imported *  - -  - -

 total  49,46,10,340.57 100%  42,86,40,006.76 100%

 * Includes incidental cost of purchase

 Consumption of Packing Material  Year Ended 31/03/2022  Year Ended 31/03/2021 

  Amount  % Amount %

 Indigenous  16,20,63,400.76 100%  9,86,62,922.98 100%

 Imported *  - -  - -

 total  16,20,63,400.76 100%  9,86,62,922.98 100%

 * Includes incidental cost of purchase
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 Consumption of Consumable items  Year Ended 31/03/2022  Year Ended 31/03/2021 

  Amount  % Amount %

 Indigenous  8,90,788.96 100%  2,74,254.00 100%

 Imported *  - -  - -

 total  8,90,788.96 100%  2,74,254.00 100%

 * Includes incidental cost of purchase

 Purchase of Semi finished Goods  Year Ended 31/03/2022  Year Ended 31/03/2021 

  Amount  % Amount %

 Indigenous  27,06,18,340.14 100%  7,69,23,093.51 100%

 Imported *  - -  - -

 total  27,06,18,340.14 100%  7,69,23,093.51 100%

 * Includes incidental cost of purchase

 Purchase of Loan License Material/Items  Year Ended 31/03/2022  Year Ended 31/03/2021 

  Amount  % Amount %

 Indigenous  43,60,34,650.48 100%  24,77,44,108.57 100%

 Imported *  - -  - -

 total  43,60,34,650.48 100%  24,77,44,108.57 100%

 * Includes incidental cost of purchase

21  Change in inventories (Amount in `)

 Particulars  Year ended 
31/03/2022 

 Year ended 
31/03/2021 

 Opening Stock:

  Finished Goods  4,80,10,338.77  6,54,13,923.14 

 Work in progress  12,63,33,612.61  10,15,04,352.70 

 L.L. Purchase Item in Stock  1,31,68,020.17  63,31,291.52 

 total (A)  18,75,11,971.55  17,32,49,567.36 

 Closing Stock:

 Finished Goods  11,14,10,578.53  4,80,10,338.77 

 Work in progress  12,53,57,045.48  12,63,33,612.61 

 L.L. Purchase Item in Stock  1,22,95,637.22  1,31,68,020.17 

 total (B)  24,90,63,261.23  18,75,11,971.55 

 Increase/(decrease) In Inventories (A-B)  (6,15,51,289.68)  (1,42,62,404.19)

22 Employee Benefits Expenses (Amount in `)

 Particulars  Year ended 
31/03/2022 

 Year ended 
31/03/2021 

 Salaries & wages #  14,79,23,788.77  15,22,23,401.31 

 Contribution to Provident and other funds  79,33,658.00  78,06,424.00 

 Gratuity  29,64,644.00  60,52,036.00 

 Leave encashment  89,76,388.00  32,02,539.00 

 Staff Welfare Expenses  70,27,728.59  41,43,285.15 

 Total  17,48,26,207.36  17,34,27,685.46 

 # Includes Directors Salary and Remuneration: ` 34,79,511.00 (Including Employee Providend Fund)
23 finance Costs  (Amount in `)

 Particulars  Year ended 
31/03/2022 

 Year ended 
31/03/2021 

 Interest on:   

 Interest on CC A/C on SBI MoHAn  -  2,40,722.00 

 Total  -  2,40,722.00 

24 Other Expenses (Amount in `) 

 Particulars  Year ended 
31/03/2022 

 Year ended 
31/03/2021 
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 Freight Inward  10,57,478.43  4,41,967.79 

 Fees & Charges  4,05,012.53  1,53,976.70 

 Advertisement  7,17,373.00  3,87,040.00 

 Security expenses  26,34,925.76  25,70,993.76 

 Books & Periodicals  2,136.00  60,525.00 

 Postage, Courier, telephone & Internet 
expenses 

 7,37,763.76  6,42,012.20 

 Printing & Stationery  6,11,331.02  4,97,423.08 

 Lease Rent  2,75,35,265.86  2,72,15,673.00 

 Loading & Unloading Charges  9,628.00  5,093.96 

 Job Work Charges  1,45,20,632.50  45,54,538.00 

 Manufacturing expenses  5,06,249.80  3,76,320.00 

 Festival Expenses  46,74,544.00  42,93,569.54 

 Statutory Auditor Remuneration  65,000.00  58,000.00 

 Housekeeping & Gardening expenses  11,12,612.65  14,43,619.95 

 Interest on PF, tDS & Income tax  11,52,194.00  74,858.80 

 Bank Charges  67,604.00  24,280.20 

 Power & fuel

 (i) electricity Charges  69,67,334.00  75,30,354.32 

 (ii) Fuel expenses (Diesel)  1,10,94,631.40  82,24,775.06 

 (iii) Special Fuel (Firewood & Kanda)  51,30,754.35  40,78,789.85 

 Traveling & Conveyance

 (i) Directors’ travelling  46,708.00  72,078.00 

 (ii) Foreign travelling  -  - 

 (ii) others  12,00,001.02  6,44,515.20 

 Lab Maintenance & Testing Charges  69,34,507.32  53,88,336.39 

 Staff Recruitment & Training Expenses  4,77,567.00  16,000.00 

 Insurance 

 (i) Insurance Stock & Building  6,77,100.42  6,79,500.01 

 (ii) transit Insurance Inwards  -  - 

 Workmen Compensation Insurance  2,34,195.00  2,87,360.38 

 Legal & Professional Charges  9,44,950.00  5,78,510.00 

 Office Expenses  9,61,435.08  6,42,412.01 

 other expenses  89,449.00  13,013.00 

 entertainment expenses  1,89,635.52  1,23,399.12 

 Repair & Maintenance:

 (i) Building  8,48,759.50  12,53,560.96 

 (ii) Machinery  22,65,966.69  39,93,933.19 

 (iii) others  3,39,436.80  3,54,407.81 

 Rates & taxes  6,120.00  5,880.00 

 Selling & Distribution:

 (i) Rebate, Discount & Commission  33,48,37,744.82  18,64,77,993.82 

 (ii) transit Insurance outwards  4,54,609.00  6,46,750.00 

 (iii) Kit, Packing and CFA Charge  10,13,18,589.40  6,44,80,279.71 

 (iv) Late Delivery Charges  1,11,38,956.66  4,83,61,454.10 

 (v) Business Promotional Expenses  8,49,229.00  2,08,647.00 

 (vi) Bad Debts (Provision)  3,47,94,609.68  2,86,75,196.71 

 (vii) Freight outward & Royality Charges  9,70,46,669.24  4,90,27,125.33 

  Total  67,46,58,710.21  45,45,64,163.95 
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25  PRIOR PERIOd EXPENSES/INCOME (NET)  (Amount in `)

 Particulars  Year ended 
31/03/2022 

 Year ended 
31/03/2021 

 Prior Period Income

 Excess provision of Earlier Years TDS written off  4,31,090.00  1,12,430.00 

 Excess Depreciation charged in P.Y. written off  -  2,09,109.04 

 Prior Period Expenditure

 tDS & Interest payable  -  - 

  Total  4,31,090.00  3,21,539.04 

26 EARNINGS PER SHARE (Amount in `)

Particulars  Year ended 
31/03/2022 

 Year ended 
31/03/2021 

 (i) Net Profit after tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss attributable to Equity Shareholders  33,76,35,009.42  11,05,16,643.98

 (ii) Weighted Average number of equity shares used as denominator for  calculating EPS(Basic)  5,19,80,000.00  5,19,80,000.00

 (iii) Weighted Average number of equity shares and all dilutive potentional equity shares as denominator for 
calculating EPS (Diluted)

 5,19,80,000.00  5,19,80,000.00

 (iv) Face Value per equity share  10.00  10.00 

 (v) Basic earnings per share  6.50  2.13 

 (vi) Diluted earnings per share  6.50  2.13 

27 CONTIGENT LIABILITIES/COMMITMENTS (Amount in `)

 (A) Contingent Liabilities

 EPFO - Haldwani (Liabilities under 7A Proceesding)  1,12,57,094.00  1,12,57,094.00 

 GSt - Almora (GSt Demand under Vehicle Protest)  1,34,300.00  1,34,300.00 

 Income tax Demand for A.Y.2015-16  29,04,160.00  23,23,311.00 

 Income tax Demand for A.Y.2012-13  16,73,344.00  13,38,644.00 

 Income tax Demand for A.Y.2016-17  65,332.00  52,232.00 

 Income tax Demand for A.Y.2017-18  5,42,819.00  4,34,249.00 

 Income tax Demand for A.Y.2019-20  3,32,376.00  3,32,376.00 

 (B) Commitments

 Capital Commitement under Modernization Project  23,04,914.50  23,04,914.50 

28 IMPACT Of PENdING LITIGATIONS ON ITS fINANCIAL POSITION 

Litigation pending against / for the company does not seem to create any obligation on financial position of the company.

For M/S indian Medicines Pharmaceutical Corporation Ltd.

Place : Mohan      

Date: 26.08.2022      

       

  Arvind kumar Aggarwal Pankaj kumar Jha Mukesh Kumar  Vikram Singh 

 AGM (f &A)  (Company Secretary)  (Managing Director) (director)

 Membership No. 32501 Membership No. A27214 dIN No. 08298755 dIN No. 08559981

       fOR: ACHAL SRIVASTAVA & CO. 

      Chartered Accountants 

      Firm Registration No. : 013385C 

       

       

      (Sanjay kumar Gupta) 

      Partner 

      Membership No.: 408105 

      Place : Haldwani 
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B. NOTES ON ACCOUNTS:

29.1  METHOd Of ACCOUNTING

 except for the method of accounting disclosed hereunder, the Accounts of the Company have been  
prepared on accrual basis.

29.2 SHAREHOLdING PATTERN:

  the Govt. of India’s Shareholding during the year was 98.11% of the Share Capital (i.e. ` 51.00 Crore) and 1.89% 
(i.e. ` 0.98 Crore) of the Share Capital was held by M/s Kumaon Mandal Vikas nigam Ltd. nainital (A State Public 
Sector enterprise).

29.3 EARNING PER SHARE:

 the company has made a Profit of ` 33.76 Crore during the year. the basic & diluted ePS has been calculated 
` 6.50

 The calculation/reconciliation of basic and weighted share is as follows:

Basic 2021-22

Profit for the year after tax (`) 33,76,35,009.42

Weighted average number of Shares (no.) 51980000

earnings Per Share (`) 6.50

nominal Value Per Share (`) 10.00

diluted 2021-22

Profit for the year after tax (`) 33,76,35,009.42

Weighted average number of Shares (no.) 51980000

earnings Per Share (`) 6.50

nominal Value Per Share (`) 10.00

29.4 CASH fLOW STATEMENT

 Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of trans-
actions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and 
item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. the cash flows from operating, 
investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

29.5  MEdICINES fOR SAMPLES:

 the inventory of finished goods has been taken after adjustment of an amount of ` 4,58,229.71 towards sam-
ples (previous year ` 2,83,019.85)

29.6 SHORTAGE/WASTAGE ANd SPOILAGE Of STOCK:

 the difference in the closing stock of Raw material, Packing material, finished goods etc. between quantity as 
per Stock Register and physically in hand is treated as Shortage/Wastage/Spoilage (Refer Point no. 29.25.X be-
low) the same is considered as material consumed and is not separately shown in the Manufacturing, trading 
and Profit & Loss Account.
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29.7 SECUREd LOANS:

 the Company is having a cash credit limit of ` 300.00 lac with S.B.I. Mohan. the said limit is secured against 
hypothecation of stock & Debts receivable.

29.8 TRAdE RECEIVABLES:

 Almost 95% of trade receivables are from Govt. Agencies. Hence all trade Receivables are unsecured but con-
sidered good.

29.9 CONfIRMATION Of BALANCES:

 Confirmation of Balances of trade payables and advances from certain parties are yet to be received. For trade 
receivables the same is being followed up.

29.10 INTEREST TO M.S.M.E. UNITS

 In respect of the interest on delayed payments for the prescribed (small scale and Ancillary) Industries, no such 
interest has been paid.

29.11 VAT/CST/GST ASSESSMENTS:

 the VAt/CSt Assessments up to 30th June, 2017 has been completed. the subsequent Goods and Service tax 
(GSt) assessment is awaited.

29.12 dUTIES & TAXES (REfUNdABLE):

 the year wise/branch wise breakup details of Duty and taxes Refundable considered in the books of accounts 
towards GSt/VAt/CSt up to 31st March, 2022 are as follows: 

S. 
NO.

Name of Branches 
(State -wise)

Type of 
Taxes/
Refund

f.Y.2016-17 f.Y.2017-18 f.Y.2018-19 f.Y.2019-20 f.Y.2020-21 f.Y.2021-22 Total as on 31st 
Mar, 2022

1 Mohan, Uttarakhand GSt 0.00 39,12,430.66 3,74,74,387.94 4,61,34,171.94 5,45,88,734.34 7,99,09,589.18 22,20,19,314.06

2 Mohan, Uttarakhand GSt (Under Protest) 0.00 0.00 1,34,300.00 0.00 0.00 1,34,300.00

2 Imlikhera, Uttarakhand GSt 0.00 0.00 39,65,528.65 50,37,530.72 55,09,008.93 0.00 1,45,12,068.30

3 Lucknow, U.P. GSt 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 75,642.00 (75,642.00) 0.00

4 Delhi, new Delhi VAt/
CSt

14,72,684.55 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 14,72,684.55

5 Banglore, Karnataka GSt 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 48,414.00 (48,414.00) 0.00

6 Jaipur, Rajasthan GSt 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3,75,098.15 3,75,098.15

total: 14,72,684.55 39,12,430.66 4,14,39,916.59 5,13,06,002.66 6,02,21,799.27 8,01,60,631.33 23,85,13,465.06

29.13 PROVISION fOR INCOME TAX:

 a.  Provision of Income-tax has been made during the year as per rules under Income- tax Act. Return of In-
come up to A.Y. 2021-22 has been filed by the company. 

 b.  InteReSt on InCoMe-tAX: the interest on Income tax has been provided separately in compliance with 
guidance notes of ICAI. the Amount provided is ` 11,52,044/-for AY 2021-22 (Previous Year nil).

29.14 LIABILITY NOT ACKNOWLEdGEd AS dEBT

 Following Demand has been raised by Income tax Department which has not been accounted in books of ac-
count. Demand has been shown under Contingent Liabilities. 
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Assessment Year demand Remarks Status

2012-13 ` 16, 73,344.00 20% amount i.e ` 3, 34,700/- of total Demand of ` 16, 73,344/- already 
paid in April, 2019.

Appeal is pending 
with CIt (A).

2015-16 ` 29, 04,161.00 20% amount i.e ` 5, 80,850/- of total Demand of ` 29, 04,161/- already 
paid in Jan, 2019.

2016-17 ` 65,332.00 20% amount i.e ` 11,100/- & ` 2000/- of total Demand of ` 55,332 &  
` 10,000/-respectively already paid in Jan, 2019.

2017-18 ` 5, 42,819.00 20% amount i.e ` 1, 08,570/- of total Demand of ` 5, 42,819/- already 
paid in Dec, 2019.

2019-20 ` 3, 32,376.00 As per Intimation u/s 143(1) dated 30.04.2020, demand of ` 3, 32,376/-
has been raised by Income tax Dept.

Rectification 
request has 

already been 
submitted

29.15 a. PAYMENT fOR GRATUITY:

  During the year the Company has paid ` 59,52,130.40 towards Gratuity to the “Group Gratuity Cash Accumu-
lation Scheme” with Life Insurance Corporation of India for gratuity payable to the employees (Previous year 
` 1,58,66,708.00).

 b. PAYMENT fOR LEAVE-ENCASHMENT:

  During the year the Company has paid ` 31, 52,539.00 towards Leave encashment to the “Group Gratuity Cash 
Accumulation Scheme” with Life Insurance Corporation of India for Leave encashment payable to the employ-
ees (Previous year ` 32, 54,857.00)

29.16 BONUS & EXGRATIA

 Bonus ` 16, 13,619.00 for F.Y.2021-22 (previous year ` 16, 94,857.00) and ex-gratia (PLI) ` 13,56,576/- (previous 
year ` 14,09,179/-) has been charged to the Manufacturing, trading and P & L Accounts. the Bonus Amount is 
within the permissible limit as provided under Payment of Bonus Act, 1965 i.e. 8.33% to 20 %. 

29.17 WATER CESS LIABILITY:

 Water Cess Liability for F.Y.2013-14 to F.Y. 2014-15 has been paid along with Air Pollution Cess Liability. no fur-
ther bill/claim has been received till date. 

29.18 RELATEd PARTIES dISCLOSURE:

 According to the provisions of Accounting Standard-18. the Related Parties are as under:

 i.  Related Parties as associates: Kumaon Mandal Vikas nigam Limited, nainital (A State Public Sector enter-
prise).

 ii. details of Transactions:

Op.Bal Addition Subtraction Cl.Bal

Raw Drugs Purchase nIL nIL nIL nIL

Receiving Services 82,345.00 CR nIL nIL 82,345.00 CR

Construction Work (not completed) 2,49,892.00 DR 1,50,108.00 DR nIL 4,00,000.00 DR

   An amount of ` 1,14,362/- has been received from M/s K.M.V.n.Ltd. as part of the share of 30% profit 
for the years 2012-13 and 2013-14 based on an MoU (the details of the MoU between IMPCL and M/s 
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K.M.V.n.Ltd has been elaborated at point no.29.19). In addition, some payments towards lodging charges 
have been made by IMPCL. 

 iii. Other related Parties: (key management personnel)

  1. Dr. Mukesh Kumar, M.D. 

  2. Shri Arvind Kumar Aggarwal, AGM (F&A) 

  3. Shri Pankaj Kumar Jha, Company Secretary.

 iv. details of Transactions:

key management personnel(s)

Payment of Salaries ` 69,31,241 .00

Payment of Sitting Fee 0.00

29.19 MoU between IMPCL and KMVN Ltd.:

 As per MoU between the company and M/s K.M.V.n.Ltd., nainital (a state PSU under Govt. of Uttarakhand) ap-
prox. 4.5 acres of land has been provided to set up a ‘Medico tourism Centre’ . However, M/s K.M.V.n. Ltd. has 
constructed a Resort on the said Land. As per ‘terms of Payment’ of the said MoU, the accounts and records 
shall be maintained by the “Second Party” i.e. M/s K.M.V.n.Ltd. & Audited by auditors’ appointed through First 
Party i.e. IMPCL. M/s K.M.V.n.Ltd after meeting all revenue expenditure, the profit, will be shared in the ratio of 
70:30 between the “Second Party” M/s K.M.V.n.Ltd. and the ‘’First Party’’ i.e IMPCL respectively. In this respect, 
M/s K.M.V.n.Ltd. has confirmed that they have earned profit only in two years i.e. 2012-13 & 2013-14 during 
the year 2012-13 to 2018-19 and for the first time an amount of ` 1,14,362/- has been paid by them as part of 
the share of 30% profit for the said years. this has been accounted for under the head “other Income”. 

29.20 COST ACCOUNTING

 the price vis-vis the cost of all products are vetted by the office of Chief Adviser Cost, Ministry of Finance, (Govt. 
of India) new Delhi by following necessary costing procedure. this is done based on the data/records main-
tained/submitted by IMPCL. 

29.21 COST AUdIT REPORT:

 Company’s turnover is more than ` 50 Crore. Hence, in compliance of section 148 of Companies Act, 2013, read 
with Companies (Cost Record and Audit) Rules, 2014 Company has engaged Cost Audit firm for cost audit for the 
F.Y.2019-20. Further, Company is maintaining cost records. Cost Audit up to F.Y. 2018-19 has been completed. 
For the Financial Year 2019-20 is in progress.

29.22 SEGMENT REPORTING:  

 the Company is engaged in Pharmaceutical Business only and there are no separate reportable segments as per 
accounting Standard-17 on “Segment Reporting” issued by the council of the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of India.

29.23 REMUNERATION TO MANAGING dIRECTOR:

 Remuneration to the Managing Director is ` 34,79,511/-(Previous year ` 21,96,863/- including e.P.F.). the per-
sonal traveling expenses through official car are ` nIL. (Previous year ` nIL.)
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29.24 REMUNERATION TO STATUTORY AUdITOR dURING THE YEAR IS AS fOLLOWS:

Particulars for the year ended 31st March, 
2022

for the year ended 31st March, 
2021

For Statutory Audit ` 30,000.00 ` 30,000.00

For tax Audit nIL nIL

For Company Law matters nIL nIL

other services nIL nIL

out of Pocket expenses ` 35,000.00 ` 28,000.00

29.25 OTHER INfORMATION:

 I. PROJECT EXPENdITURE

   The Company has assigned the modernization work of the Plant to HLL Life care Limited. Construction 
work and installation/commissioning of the Machines have been completed. total Fund Available under 
Project was ` 42.28 Cr. total expenses booked under PRoJeCt ` 42.05 Cr. till 31st Mar, 2022. Balance 
amount of ` 0.23 cr. Shown under Capital Commitment. 

 II.  expenditure on employees, who are in receipt of remuneration aggregating not less than ` 60, 00,000/- 
per financial year, if employed throughout the year or at a rate not less than ` 5,00,000/- per month, if 
employed for part of the year. – nIL.

 III.  Licensed/Installed capacity and actual production of Mohan Unit:

S. 
No.

ITEM UNIT INSTALLEd CAPACITY ACTUAL PROdUCTION

2021-22 2020-21 2021-22 2020-21

1. tablets/Pills KG. 200000.00 200000.00 189918.08 154129.100

2. Capsules KG. 50000.00 50000.00 8942.80 4201.100

3. Choorna KG. 600000.00 600000.00 384141.38 202337.080

4. Syrups LtRS. 300000.00 300000.00 230130.50 106161.600

5. Arka LtRS. 50000.00 50000.00 37099.00 41273.120

6. Asava LtRS. 500000.00 500000.00 376288.00 358700.000

7. taila LtRS. 300000.00 300000.00 253591.00 92902.250

8. Marham KG. 30000.00 30000.00 3676.55 8103.000

9. Avaleha KG. 250000.00 250000.00 350404.24 261184.750

10. Bhasma KG. 50000.00 50000.00 5950.55 16574.500

TOTAL 2330000.00 2330000.00 1840142.10 1245566.50

   Note: Due to heavy demand of pandemic drugs of Avaleha during the year, actual Avaleha production is 
5,97,895.54 KG. Therefore, under Utilization capacity of 147491.30 KG. in Syrups Section and 100000 KG 
of Taila Section have been utilized for producing Avaleha. 
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 IV. Licensed/Installed capacity and actual production of Imlikhera (Haridwar) Unit:

S. No. ITEM UNIT INSTALLEd CAPACITY ACTUAL PROdUCTION

2021-22 2020-21 2021-22 2020-21

1. tablets/Pills KG. 22000.00 22000.00 32854.38 28872.30

2. Capsules KG. 14000.00 14000.00 — —

3. Choorna KG. 380000.00 380000.00 134065.50 463499.00

4. Syrups LtRS. 145000.00 145000.00 10905.00 1330.00

5. Arka LtRS. — — — —

6. Asava LtRS. 360000.00 360000.00 207756.00 351771.00

7. taila LtRS. 145000.00 145000.00 13320.50 51831.50

8. Marham KG. 23000.00 23000.00 — 37.80

9. Avaleha KG. 25000.00 25000.00 18121.00 13276.60

10. Bhasma KG. 3000.00 3000.00 167.00 23.03

TOTAL 1117000.00 1117000.00 417189.38 910641.13

note:

1. Installed Capacities are subject to variation depending upon the product mix.

2. the Installed Capacities are on single shift basis.

3. Licensed and Installed Capacities are certified by the Management and accepted by the Auditors with-
out verification, being a technical matter. 

 V. Value of import calculated on C.I.F. Basis:  

2021-2022 2020-2021

i. Raw material nIL nIL

ii. Components & spare parts nIL nIL

iii. Capital Goods nIL nIL

 VI. expenditure in Foreign Currency:

2021-2022 2020-2021

i. on account of Royalty, know-how professional, consultation 
fees, interest and other matters.

nIL nIL

 VII. Consumption of Raw Material, Spare parts and Components: 

Particulars for the Year 2021-22 for the Year 2020-21

Qty.  
(kg. /Ltr.)

Value  
(` P.)

% Qty.  
(kg. /Ltr.)

Value  
 (` P.)

%

Raw Material

i. Imported

ii. Indigenous

nIL

*

nIL

49,46,10,547.57

nIL

100%

nIL

29,27,400.91

nIL

42,86,40,006.76

nIL

100%
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Packing Material

i. Imported

ii. Indigenous

nIL

*

nIL

16,20,63,400.76

nIL

100%

nIL

*

nIL

9,86,62,922.98

nIL

100%

Spares and Components

i. Imported

ii. Indigenous

nIL

**

nIL

8,90,788.96

nIL

100%

nIL

**

nIL

2,74,254.00

nIL

100%

Loan License Material

i. Imported

ii. Indigenous

nIL

*

nIL

43,60,34,650.48

nIL

100%

nIL

*

nIL

24,77,44,108.57

nIL

100%

Semi finished Material

i. Imported

ii. Indigenous

nIL

*

nIL

27,06,18,340.14

nIL

100%

nIL

*

nIL

7,69,23,093.51

nIL

100%

*not ascertainable 

** Being small value spare parts components taken in repair and maintenance. 

 VIII. earnings in Foreign exchange:

2021-2022 2020-2021

i. export of Goods calculated on FoB basis nIL nIL

ii. Royalty, know-how professional and consultation fees, interest 
and dividend

nIL nIL

iii. other Income nIL nIL

 IX. Amount remitted in Foreign Currency Dividends:

2021-2022 2020-2021

i. no. of non-resident shareholders nIL nIL

ii. no. of shares held by non-resident nIL nIL

 X. Losses of Finished Goods/Shortages/Spoilage:

Qty. (kg./Ltr.) Value (`)

2021-2022 2020-2021 2021-2022 2020-2021

Loss during packing process 31,998.930 22,106.382 1,20,93,889.71 55,06,026.69

Shortage/excess during verification 1757.702 130.08 (55,807.30) 57,131.58

Spoiled 225.220 14,829.667 92,261.54 37,32,015.49

TOTAL 33,981.852 37,066.129 1,21,30,343.95 92,95,173.76

Note: the inventory of finished goods has been taken after adjusting above Losses/shortages/spoilage. 
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M/s Indian Medicines Pharmaceutical Corporation Limited  
Mohan, Dist.- Almora (Via Ramnagar), Uttarakhand-244715 

Notes forming part of Financial Statements

29.26 LATE dELIVERY CHARGES: 

 Late delivery charges of ` 1,11,38,956.66 has been charged off to Profit and loss account during the year being 
part of business and trade expenditure. Customer wise detail is as below: 

S.No. Customer Name Amount (`)

1 Mission Director-national Ayush Mission- Rajasthan 1,07,21,275.00

2 Dept. of Ayush-Govt. of Karnataka 21,967.00

3 Director Unani Dept. Jaipur-Rajasthan 64,460.44

4 Pharmaceutical and Medical Devices Bureau of India(PMBI) 3,31,254.22

Total 1,11,38,956.66

29.27 dISCOUNT & COMMISSION:

 As per agreement with Service Associates, Company recognizes the ‘Rebate, Discount & Commission’ expenses 
in P&L A/c only on occurring of actual sales and receipt of amount from debtors. During the year, Company 
has booked Rebate, Discount & Commission of ` 33, 48 37,744.82 (Previous Year ` 18, 64, 77,993.82). Further, 
Kiting Packing and Forwarding expenses are booked on occurring of actual sales during the year. Company has 
booked KIt Packing and CFA Charges of ̀  10,13,18,589.40 (Previous Year ̀  6,44,80,279.71) and Freight outward 
& Royalty charges of ` 9,70,46,669.24 (Previous Year ` 4,90,27,125.33) during the year.

29.28 PROVISION fOR dOUBTfUL dEBTS, dOUBTfUL dEPOSITS and OUTSTANdING AdVANCES:

 During the year, company has made necessary provision for Doubtful Debtors of ` 3,47,94,609.68 which are 
more than 4 Yrs old (till P.Y. ` 2,66,98,031.71) as on 31st March 2022 As per schedule no.24. 

29.29 LEASE RENT fOR LEASEd UNIT AT IMPCL IMLIKHERA, HARIdWAR:

 the Company has taken a manufacturing unit in Imlikhera, Haridwar in July 2018 on monthly Lease Rent of ` 22 
lacs (GSt extra), which started its functions in January, 2019. Lease Rent for the year 2021-22 of ` 2.72 Crore 
(` 22 lacs per month for Imlikhera Plant for 12 months and ` 8, 35,265.86 of Mohan Unit for 2021-22) has been 
shown in note no. 24 other expenses. 

29.30 CREATION Of WATER RESOURCES/BOREWELL IN THE PREMISES Of IMPCL, MOHAN:

 on the request of Ministry of Ayush, Govt. of India to “the Chief Secretary, Govt. of Uttarakhand” regarding 
creation of water resources in the premises of IMPCL, Mohan. the Chief engineer/Head of Irrigation Dept, 
Government of Uttarakhand, Ramnagar, suggested creating a borewell for this purpose. the Irrigation Dept, 
Govt. of Uttarakhand, submitted a Detailed Project Report for the same; at an estimated cost of ` 72 lacs which 
were subsequently revised to ` 69.42 Lac through letter dt. 05.10.2021 for the said work. the proposal was duly 
accepted by IMPCL. Irrigation Dept, Govt. of Uttarakhand, has allotted the work to a contractor on 30.12.2021 
through the tendering process. the work was under progress as on 31st March, 2022. Since the status/progress 
of the work was not known /estimated, the same has not been accounted for as Work in Progress in the Assets 
of the Company. no payment has been released in this account so far.

29.31 SURRENdER Of LEASE HOLd RAMNAGAR LANd: 

 the Company has surrendered the Lease hold Land at Ramnagar, to the Additional Chief Conservator of Forest 
& nodel officer, Forest Department, Dehradun. this was done on the basis of decision taken in the evaluation 
Committee Meeting on the strategic disinvestment of IMPCL. therefore, the written down value (WDV) of the 
Asset of ` 89,449/-has been transferred to ‘Assets Impairment Account’ as per AS-28.
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M/s Indian Medicines Pharmaceutical Corporation Limited  
Mohan, Dist.- Almora (Via Ramnagar), Uttarakhand-244715 

Notes forming part of Financial Statements

29.32 Previous Year’s Figures/words are being regrouped/rearranged wherever necessary.

29.33 note 3 to 29.33 forms an integral part of the Balance Sheet and has been authenticated by the Management.

for M/S Indian Medicines Pharmaceutical Corporation Ltd.

Place: Mohan
Date: 26.08.2022

 Arvind kumar Aggarwal Pankaj kumar Jha Mukesh Kumar  Vikram Singh

 AGM (f &A)  (Company Secretary) (Managing Director)  (director)

Membership No. 32501 Membership No. A27214 dIN No. 08792177 dIN No. 08559981

As per our report of even date attached
for ACHAL SRIVASTAVA & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration no. : 013385C

(Sanjay kumar Gupta) 
Partner
Membership no.: 408105 
Place: Haldwani
Date: 31.08.2022
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INdEPENdENT AUdITORS’ REPORT

to, 
the Members of 
InDIAn MeDICIneS PHARMACeUtICAL CoRPoRAtIon LtD 
MoHAn, DIStt ALMoRA, UttARAKHAnD

Report on the Audit of the Standalone financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of “InDIAn MeDICIneS PHARMACeUtICAL CoRPoRAtIon LtD, MoHAn, 
DIStt ALMoRA”, which comprise the balance sheet as at 31st March, 2022, the statement of Profit and Loss and 
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of 
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial 
statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in 
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st 
March, 2022, its profit/loss and its cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the 
Companies Act, 2013. our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities 
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with 
the Code of ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements 
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the 
Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and 
the Code of ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the 
standalone financial statements of the current period. these matters were addressed in the context of our audit 
of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a 
separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to 
be communicated in our report.
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S. No. Key Audit Matter Auditor’s Response

1. the balances of other Current Liabilities, Long term 
Loans Advances, & trade Receivables as shown in 
note 8, 12, & 14 

Subject to confirmation of the respective parties.

2. In case of AS- 28, Loss due to impairment of assets 
has not been worked out.

Assets not verified physically therefore Loss due 
to impairment of assets not recognized. Need to 
verified physically.

3. Internal control Internal control needs to be strengthened specially 
in area of effective procurement & production 
process management, man and machine hour 
utilization, timely realization from debtor’s, follow 
up for penalties levied in supplies, normal losses 
ratio for production process, storage and transit 
of inventories should be decided to control the 
pilferage an abnormal loss. 

4. GSt demand order on impounding of vehicle for 
` 1,34,300/- is shown other advance head and no 
provision for the same has been made in the Books 
of Accounts of the Company. However the amount 
has been shown in notes to accounts under 
contingent head of liability. (note no.27).

Appeal pending with GSt Department

5. Regional PF Commissioner, Haldwani (Uttarakhand) 
has recovered ` 1,12,57,094/- thought their 
recovery notice U/S 8F of the ePF & Miscellaneous 
Provision Act, 1952 served on State Bank of 
India, Mohan, towards ePF liability in respect of 
Contractual labour engaged by the company for the 
period 2008-2014, and no provision for the same 
has been made in the Books of Accounts of the 
Company. However the amount has been shown 
in notes to accounts under contingent head of 
liability. (note no.27).

Appeal pending with High Court Allahabad with 
Lucknow Bench
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Information other than the financial statements and auditors’ report thereon

the Company’s board of directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. the other information 
comprises the information included in the Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report but does not include 
the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of 
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, 
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our 
knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information; 
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to

1. note no 2.3 of financial statement “Significant Accounting Policies” to the financial statements which describes 
that cost of work in process inventory is valued at estimated cost as per regular practice.

2. note no 29.25 of financial statement “Shortage/Wastage and Spoilage” to the financial statements shows losses 
are not bifurcated into normal and abnormal losses which can be useful for management purposes.

3. note no 29.19 of financial statement, the Company is in a Joint Venture with Kumaon Mandal Vikas nigam Ltd.
(KMVnL) for Medical tourism according to Point no 6.2 page no 9 of the memorandum of understanding ‘terms of 
Payment: the payments in respect of the memorandum of understanding shall made as follows.

a. the “Second Party” KMVnL shall submit the Annual Accounts on agreed terms after meeting all revenue 
expenditure the income will be shared in the ratio of 70:30 between the “Second Party” KMVnL and the ‘First 
Party’ IMPCL respectively and the amount will be released in next month of closing of the financial year.

 Point no 3.5 page no. 8 of the memorandum of understanding

 the accounts and records in respect of the Memorandum of understanding shall be maintained by the “Second 
Party” KMVnL & Audited by auditors’ appointment by First Party.

 In this respect, the company has received first time amount of ` 1,14,362/- as part of the share of 30% profit 
for the years 2012-13 and 2013-14 from M/s KMVnL which has been booked under the head “other Income”. 
However, the accounts and records in respect of the MoU are being maintained by the “Second Party” KMVnL 
& Audited by auditors’ appointed by “Second Party” only.

4. Company is maintaining accounts manually as well as accounts on computer software ( tally eRP 9) printout of 
books maintained on computer software is not taken, we conducted our audit around computer on the basis of 
print out of trial balance taken from computer.
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5. there are seven legal cases pending for & against the company, no provision for contingent liability is made for 
the legal cases pending for & against the company. As per management representation no material liability of 
contingent will arise on account of these legal cases.

6. Balance of GSt tax Credit is subject to reconciliation from GSt Return.

7. Cost Audit process is delayed. Cost audit for FY 2019-20 is under process. 

 our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone Financial 
Statements

the Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 
(“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial 
position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally 
accepted in India, including the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. this responsibility also 
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of 
the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application 
of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring 
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial 
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue 
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic 
alternative but to do so.

that Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the financial Statements

our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 
SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism 
throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, 
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. the risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from 



54

First Floor, Sunlight Complex,
Opposite KhatuShyam Mandir, Talli Bamouri,
Haldwani, Nainital (Uttarakhand)  
Mob. No. : 9760037812 Ph.No.05946-220424
E-mail: achalsrivastava.co.hld@gmail.com
casanjay123@gmail.com

ACHAL SRIVASTAVA & Co.
Chartered Accountants  

fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for 
expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the 
operating effectiveness of such controls. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 
related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based 
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may 
cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material 
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the 
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. our conclusions are based on 
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause 
the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and 
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 
presentation. 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, 
makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the standalone financial 
statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of 
our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements 
in the standalone financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing 
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify 
during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may 
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) order, 2020 (“the order”), issued by the Central Government 
of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the ‘Annexure A’, a 
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and 
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.
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b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears 
from our examination of those books.

c. the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are 
in agreement with the books of account.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under 
Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

e. on the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2022 taken on record 
by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2022 from being appointed 
as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the 
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in ‘Annexure B’. 

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s report in accordance with the requirements 
of Sec 197(16) of the Act as amended, we report that Section 197 is not applicable to the company, since it is 
a Government Company. 

h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according 
to the explanations given to us:

i. the Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position.

ii. the Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were 
any material foreseeable losses.

iii. there were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor education and Protection 
Fund by the Company.

iv. a.  the management has represented that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief, other than as 
disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from 
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any 
other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, 
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly 
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 
company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the 
Ultimate Beneficiaries;

 b.  the management has represented, that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed 
in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the company from any person(s) or 
entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded 
in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other 
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate 
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 
and
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 c.  Based on such audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the 
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations 
under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material 
mis-statement.

v. the dividend declared or paid during the year by the company is in compliance with section 123 of the 
Companies Act, 2013.

FoR ACHAL SRIVAStAVA & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration no.: 013385C

(Sanjay Kumar Gupta) 
Partner
Membership no.: 408105
UDIn: 22408105AQWGtn9175
Place: Haldwani 
Date: 31.08.2022 
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Annexure ‘A’ 
The Annexure referred to in paragraph 1 of Our Report on  

“Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements”.

We report that:

(i) a.  i.  the company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details 
except the situation of Property, Plant and Equipment;

  ii.  the Company does not have any intangible assets. Accordingly, clause 3(i)(a)(B) of the order is not 
applicable to the Company.

 b.  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records 
of the Company, the Property, Plant and equipment have not been physically verified by the management.

 c.  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the 
records of the Company, the company is situated on Lease hold land. the Lease agreement (90 Years) is 
duly executed between the company and SIIDCUL (UK).

 d.  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the 
records of the Company, the company has not revalued its Property, Plant and equipment (including Right 
of Use assets) or intangible assets during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under Clause 3(i)(d) of the 
order is not applicable to the Company.

 e.  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the 
records of the Company, there are no proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the company 
for holding any benami property under the Benami transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and 
rules made thereunder.

(ii) a.  As explained to us & on the basis of the records examined by us, in our opinion, physical verification 
of inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals by the management. CA Certificate has been 
obtained in case of inventory lying with agents.

   In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the procedures of physical 
verification of inventory followed by the Management are reasonable and adequate in relation to the size 
of the company and the nature of its business. the Company is maintaining proper records of inventory 
and discrepancy noticed on verification between physical stock and book record has been treated as 
consumption as per continuous accounting policy of the Company and the same has been shown as 
shortage, spoiled and expired goods by way of notes to the Accounts. no policy for identification of normal 
& abnormal loss exists at present.

 b.  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the 
records of the Company, the company has not been sanctioned during any point of time of the year, working 
capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of 
security of current assets and hence reporting under clause 3(ii)(b) of the order is not applicable.
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(iii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records 
of the company, the company has not made investments in, nor provided any guarantee or security or granted 
any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability 
Partnerships or any other parties during the year. Accordingly, provisions of clause 3(iii)(a), 3(iii)(b), 3(iii)(c), 
3(iii)(d), 3(iii)(e) and 3(iii)(f) of the order are not applicable to the Company. 

(iv) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records, 
in respect of loans, investments, guarantees, and security, provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 have been complied with.

(v) the company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits covered under 
sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the order is not applicable.

(vi) As per information & explanation given by the management, maintenance of cost records has been specified 
by the Central Government under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act and such accounts and 
records have been so made and maintained;

(vii) a.  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the 
records of the company, the company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Goods 
and Services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of 
customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues to the appropriate authorities. 
According to the information and explanation given to us there were no outstanding statutory dues as on 
31st of March, 2022 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

 b.  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records 
of the company, there is no statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) that have not been deposited on 
account of any dispute except following: 

Name of the 
Statute

Nature of the dues Amount (`) Period to 
which the 
amount 
relates

forum where 
dispute is 
pending

Remarks, if Any

Income tax Income tax Penalty ` 16,73,344/- AY 2012-13 CIt(A) the company has 
deposited 20% amount 

of Penalty/demand 
and shown it as ‘I.t. 
Refundable’ under 

“Current Assets” head.

Income tax Income tax Demand ` 29,04,161/- AY 2015-16 CIt(A)

Income tax Income tax Penalty ` 10,000/- AY 2016-17 CIt(A)

Income tax Income tax Demand ` 55,332/- AY 2016-17 CIt(A)

Income tax Income tax Demand ` 5,42,819/- AY 2017-18 CIt(A)

Income tax Income tax Demand ` 3,32,376/- AY 2019-20 I.tax Dept. the rectification request 
has been submitted by the 

company.
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(vii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records 
of the company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions, previously unrecorded as 
income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income tax Act, 1961 as income during the 
year except following: 

 excess Provision of earlier Years tDS liabilities of ` 4,31,090.00

(ix) According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the Company has not obtained 
any term loans during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(c) of the order is not applicable.

(x) the company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt 
instruments) during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the order is not applicable.

(xi) Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, no fraud by the company or any fraud on the company has been noticed or reported 
during the course of audit.

(xii) the company is not a nidhi Company. Accordingly, clause 3(xii)(a), 3(xii)(b) and 3(xii)(c) of the order is not 
applicable.

(xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions with the related 
parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of Companies Act, where applicable and the details have 
been disclosed in the financial statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards;

(xiv) Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, the company has an internal 
audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business;

 We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date for the period under audit. 

(xv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not entered into 
any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him and hence, provisions of Section 192 
of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

(xvi) In our opinion and based on our examination, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA 
of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934). Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the order is not applicable.

(xvii) Based on our examination, the company has not incurred cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately 
preceding financial year.

(xviii) there has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(xviii) of the order 
is not applicable.

(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and 
expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, our knowledge of the Board 
of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, 
nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date 
of the audit report that company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as 
and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is 
not an assurance as to the future viability of the company. We further state that our reporting is based on the 
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facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities 
falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company as and 
when they fall due.

(xx) Based on our examination, the provision of section 135 are not applicable on the company. Accordingly, clauses 
3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the order are not applicable.

(xxi) the company is not required to prepare Consolidate financial statement hence this clause is not applicable.

FoR ACHAL SRIVAStAVA & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration no.: 013385C

(Sanjay Kumar Gupta) 
Partner
Membership no.: 408105 
UDIn: 22408105AQWGtn9175
Place: Haldwani 
Date: 31.08.2022 
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Annexure‘B’ 
Report on Internal financial Controls with reference to financial statements

Report on the Internal financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 
2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of “Indian Medicines Pharmaceutical 
Corporation Ltd, Mohan Distt. Almora” as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements 
of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for internal Financial Controls

the Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the 
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of 
internal control stated in the Guidance note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued 
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. these responsibilities include the design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient 
conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and 
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation 
of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting based 
on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls 
over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be 
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial 
controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India. those Standards and the Guidance note require that we comply with ethical requirements and 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over 
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls 
system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. our audit of internal financial controls over financial 
reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk 
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control 
based on the assessed risk. the procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of 
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.
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Meaning of internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance 
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes 
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial 
reporting includes those policies and procedures that 

1. pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and 
dispositions of the assets of the company; 

2. provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial 
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the 
company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; 
and 

3. Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or 
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

inherent Limitations of internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of 
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and 
not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future 
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate 
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2022, 
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial 
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

FoR ACHAL SRIVAStAVA & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration no.: 013385C

(Sanjay Kumar Gupta) 
Partner
Membership no.: 408105 
UDIn: 22408105AQWGtn9175
Place: Haldwani 
Date: 31.08.2022
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Annexure to the Independent Auditors’ Report 
[Referred to in paragraph 3 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ of our Report of 
even date to the members of Indian Medicines Pharmaceutical Corporation Ltd, Mohan distt Almora on 

the accounts of the company for the year ended 31st March, 2022]

on the basis of such checks as we considered appropriate and according to the information and explanations given to 
us during the course of our audit, we report that:

SL.No directions Auditor Remark

1 Whether the company has systems in place to 
process all the accounting transactions through It 
Systems? If yes the implications of processing of 
accounting transactions outside It system on the 
integrity of the accounts along with the financial 
implications, if any, may be stated.

In our opinion and based on the information and 
explanation given to us, we found that the company 
has maintained its books of accounts in computer 
environment in tally package of software and all 
accounting transactions are recorded therein, other 
than this no other system in vogue.

2 Whether there is any restructuring of an existing 
loan or cases of waiver/write off of debts/loans/
interest etc. made by lender to the company due to 
the company’s inability to repay the loan? If yes, the 
financial impact may be stated.

In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanation given to us, there is no such case.

3 Whether funds received/receivable for specific 
schemes from the central/state agencies were 
properly accounted for/utilized as per its term and 
conditions? List the case of deviation.

In our opinion and according to the information 
and explanation given to us, no funds received/
receivable for any specific schemes by the company 
during the year.

FoR ACHAL SRIVAStAVA & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration no.: 013385C

(Sanjay Kumar Gupta) 
Partner
Membership no.: 408105 
UDIn: 22408105AQWGtn9175
Place: Haldwani 
Date: 31.08.2022 
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